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1 
2013 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
 
Audit Committee recommends: 
 

1. Receipt of the presentation by Kevin Travers, KPMG LLP. 
 

2. Receipt of the presentation by Warren Marshall, Director and Deputy 
Treasurer, Controllership Office. 
 

3. Receipt of the communication by Kevin Travers, KPMG LLP regarding 
Audit Findings Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2013. 
  

4. Adoption of the recommendation contained in the following report dated 
May 29, 2014 from the Commissioner of Finance. 

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 

It is recommended that this report be received for information.   
 
 

2. PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide Council with a summary of the financial 
activities of the Corporation for the year 2013. 
 
 

3. BACKGROUND  
 
Municipalities are required to prepare financial statements and report 
them to Council 
 
Under the Municipal Act, municipalities must do the following:  

1. A municipality must prepare financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles (Section 294.1) 

2. The Treasurer must report the financial affairs of the municipality to Council 
(Section 286.1) 

3. The municipality must appoint a licensed auditor who is responsible for 
auditing the accounts and transactions of the municipality annually and 
expressing an opinion on the municipality’s financial statements (Section 
296.1). 
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4. ANALYSIS AND OPTIONS 

 
The auditor has issued an unqualified opinion on the 2013 financial 
statements 
 
The annual audit, performed by KPMG LLP, is conducted in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards. For 2013, the Auditor’s Report, which forms 
an integral part of the financial statements, has been issued by KPMG without 
reservation and reflects their unqualified opinion that the financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Region in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The financial activities of 
Housing York Inc. and York Region Rapid Transit Corporation are consolidated with 
the financial activities of the Region. 
 
Financial assets increased by $221M from 2012 
 
Financial Assets are cash and assets that can be converted to cash in a short period 
of time. Cash on hand, investments and accounts receivable are all examples of 
financial assets. 
 
“Total Financial Assets” have increased by $221M from 2012. Table 1 summarizes 
the changes in Financial Assets. 
 

Table 1 
Summary of Financial Assets Increase 

 
 $ (millions) 
Cash and cash equivalents -115 
Investments 346 
Debt amounts recoverable from local 
municipalities 

 -8 

Accounts receivable   -2 
 221 

 
The decrease in cash and cash equivalents and increase in “Investments” is mainly 
due to the investment of cash, debentures and amounts received from Metrolinx in 
2013.  
 
The $8M decrease in local municipal debt is a result of the repayment of existing 
debt by the local municipalities. 
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Liabilities increased by $546M from 2012 
 
Liabilities include accounts payable and accrued liabilities, employee benefits 
obligations, deferred revenue and gross long-term liabilities. Liabilities increased by 
$546M. The changes are summarized in Table 2. 
 

Table 2 
Summary of Liabilities increase 

 
 $ (millions) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 120 
Employee benefit obligations 10 
Deferred revenue 54 
Gross long-term liabilities 
Retirement and sinking fund 

239 
123 

 546 
 
“Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities” increased $120M over 2012, 
representing a 22.8% increase over 2012. The major sources of this increase are 
listed in Table 3, including $50M for Rapid Transit capital projects and $40M in 
Provincial billings for GO Transit growth-related capital. 

 
 

Table 3 
Summary of Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities increase 

 
 $ (millions) 
Rapid Transit capital projects  50 
Amounts accrued for GO Transit capital  40 
Water and wastewater infrastructure 
projects 
Accruals for daycare operators 

28 
2 

          120 
 
“Employee benefits obligations” increased by $10M due to increases in actuarial 
valuations. Employee benefit obligations include extended health and dental 
coverage for early retirees, vested sick leave benefits, long-term disability claims, 
vacation payable and Workers’ Compensation obligations. 
 
“Deferred Revenue” increased by $54M mainly due to a net increase in the 
categories shown in Table 4. 
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Table 4 
Summary of Deferred Revenue accounts increase 

 
 $ (millions) 

Development charges - obligatory  -53 
Gas tax - obligatory 9 
Security deposits and agreements -38 
Amounts from Metrolinx for future rapid transit 
development 

142 

Provincial funding   -6 
 54 

 
 “Gross Long-term Liabilities” increased by a net $239M due to $450M of new debt 
issued. It was partially offset by repayments of existing debt. 
 
“Retirement and sinking fund” increased by $123M due to additional contributions 
made and interest earned during the year that are set aside and will be used to pay 
off future sinking fund debt. 
 
Net debt increased by $326M from 2012 
 
Net Debt is the amount that Financial Liabilities exceed Financial Assets. Financial 
assets and liabilities increased by more than $221M and $547M respectively during 
the year. Therefore, net debt increased by $326M or 31%. 
 
Non-financial assets increased by $614M in 2013 
 
Non-Financial Assets consist of the net book value (cost less accumulated 
amortization) of the Region’s tangible capital assets plus inventory and prepaid 
expenses. The Region’s non-financial assets increased by $614M in 2013 due to the 
acquisition of tangible capital assets during the year. 
 
Since 2009, the Region has been reporting its tangible capital assets in the audited 
financial statements as part of the Region’s non-financial assets, as required by the 
Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB). The net book value of the Region’s capital 
assets reported in the 2013 financial statements is $6,010,907,965. Net book value 
is the original cost of these assets less amortization, or estimated usage, since the 
assets were put into service. 
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The accumulated surplus increased by $292M in 2013 
 
An accumulated surplus represents the amount by which all assets exceed all 
liabilities. 
 
An accumulated surplus indicates that a government has net resources that can be 
used to provide future services. 
 
The Accumulated Surplus for the Region is $4,660,985,651 for 2013, an increase of 
$292M. 
 
Reserves and Reserve Funds, which are a part of the Accumulated Surplus total and 
are no longer reported separately in the Financial Statements, have increased by 
approximately $470M. Included in the increase were reclassification of sinking fund 
reserve, interest revenues and contributions from the operating surplus. 
 
 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and reflect the sound financial management of the Region. 
Transfers were made to various reserves, in accordance with Council’s approved 
reserve and surplus management strategy. 
 
The surplus management policy was changed in 2013 
 
As part of the Fiscal Strategy approved by Council in December 2013, the allocation 
of the year end operating surplus was amended. Under the current policy, the  
surplus is allocated in the following order: 
 

1. Contingent liability reserves (e.g., Workers Compensation Reserve, Long 
Term Disability Reserve), up to established target levels 

2. General Capital Reserve, up to its target level 
3. Fuel Stabilization Reserve, when a loss has been incurred from hedging 

transactions in the year 
4. Debt Reduction Reserve. 

 
Any net surplus attributed to housing operations will be allocated 80% to the Social 
Housing Development Reserve fund and 20% to the Working Capital Reserve. 
 
Supplemental and omitted property taxes received in a year will be allocated 50% 
to the Debt Reduction Reserve fund and 50% to Asset Replacement Reserve funds 
determined by the Commissioner of Finance and Treasurer. 
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The 2013 operating surplus of $43.9M was transferred to the following reserves and 
reserve funds accounts. 
 

Table 5 
Summary of surplus allocation 

 
 $ (millions) 

Debt reduction reserve fund 40.5 
Social housing reserve fund  2.7 
Working capital reserve  .7 
 43.9 

 
 

6. LOCAL MUNICIPAL IMPACT 
 
There are no local municipal impacts associated with this report. 
 
 

7. CONCLUSION 
 
The 2013 financial statements are presented in accordance with the Municipal Act. 
The format is consistent with the reporting requirements of the Public Sector 
Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada, which will 
qualify the statements for consideration for the Canadian Award for Financial 
Reporting presented by the Government Finance Officers Association. 
 
For more information on this report, please contact Warren Marshall, Director, 
Controllership Office, at Ext. 71601. 
 
The Senior Management Group has reviewed this report. 
 
 

(The attachment referred to in this clause is attached to this report.) 
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KPMG LLP Telephone ( 416) 228-7000 
Yonge Corporate Centre Fax (416) 228-7123 
4100 Yonge Street Suite 200 Internet wwwkpmg.ca 
Toronto ON M2P 2H3 
Canada 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of The Regional Municipality of York 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Regional Municipality of York, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2013, the statements of operations and accumulated surplus, 
change in net debt, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an op1mon on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Those standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
The Regional Municipality of York as at December 31, 2013, the results of its operations and accumulated surplus, 
change in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards. 

J/f'#f~ L£P 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

April 28, 2014 
Toronto, Canada 

HMG UP I~ • Yn;~dt.n IJm.ltfod li•b~•ty P¥1"•1-.h p 11nd lrMmbn" firm of the llPMG 

n~twor\ of •nd•oend~nl m~tm~ htms •f'hklted with KPMG lntf'rn•~•on•l Coo~rlttvl! 

C'k:PMG tnt•rn1Uonan. • SWIU •~"~t•tv 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

As at December 31, 2013 

2013 2012 

$ $ 

ASSETS 
Financial Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 382,744,977 497,960,655 
Accounts receivable (Note 4) 178,246,163 180,335,000 
Investments (Note 3) 2,114,194,067 1 ,768,091 ,474 
Debt amounts recoverable from 

Area municipalities (Notes 5 and 9a) 218,121,565 226,655,694 
Total 2,893,306, 772 2,673,042,823 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 647,014,261 526,973,246 
Employee benefit obligations (Note 7) 134,197,551 123,832,297 
Deferred revenue (Note 6) 220,500,698 122,477,227 
Gross long-term liabilities (Note 5) 2,508,944,941 2,269,7 15,256 
Retirement and sinking fund (Note 5) 360,149,002 237,363,447 
Deferred revenue-obligatory reserve funds (Note 6) 386,770,613 430,634,789 

4,257,577,066 3, 71 0,996,262 

Net Debt (1,364,270,294) (I ,037,953,439) 

Non-Financial Assets 
Tangible capital assets (Note 14) 6,010,907,965 5,397,301 ,685 
Inventory 2,757,050 2,731 ' 121 
Prepaid expenses 11,5902930 6,947,504 

Accumulated Surplus (Note 12) 4,660,985,651 4,369,026,871 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financtal Statements. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALI1Y OF YORK 
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus 

For the year ended December 31, 2013 

Budget 2013 2012 

$ $ $ 

Revenues 

Net taxation/user charges I,087,458,000 1,089,936,162 I,045,033,613 
Transfer payrrents (Note 15) 493,480,151 495,374,989 451,832,095 
~veloprrent contributions 260,373,000 221,157,590 378,684,812 
Fees and services 149, 155,276 130,161,510 118,252,150 
Interest 32,860,377 39,469,873 
Oher 55,431,080 88,271,050 44,676,328 

Total Revenues 2,045,897,507 2,057,761,678 2,077,948,871 

Expenses 

General govemrrent 117,209,153 117,316,399 112,352,166 
Protection to persons and property 297,319,335 298,548,297 272,853,444 
Transportation services 550,850,808 541,096,731 482, 142,340 
Environmental services 388,024,297 384,248,619 328,016,511 
Health and errergcncy services 131 ,039,012 119,475,823 110,466,375 
Corrmmity services 211,263,012 205,829,811 199,011,494 
Social housing 95,212,850 91,438,603 82,318,431 
Planning and developrrent services 7,685,670 7,848,615 7,450,525 

Total Expenses 1,798,604,137 1,765,802,898 1,594,611 ,286 

Annual Surplus 291,958,780 483,337,585 

Accwnulated Surplus, BeginningofYear 4,369,026,871 3,885,689,286 

Accumulated Surplus, End of Year 4,660,985,651 4,369,026,871 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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1HEREGI~MUNIOPALilYOF YORK 
Consolidated Statenmt of 01ange in Net Debt 

For the yta" ended Ihmlber 31, 2013 

Budget 2013 2012 

$ $ $ 

Amualsmplm 247,293,370 291,958,780 483.337,585 

Annrtization oftangible capital assets 151,133,564 168,019,058 152, 111,353 
Proceeds on dispa>al oftangible capital assets 817,393 727,3cy;) 

Cbange in inventory (25,929) (765,145) 

Cbange in prepaid expenses (4,643,426) 5,245,401 
Loos on sale oftangible capital assets 2,576,192 3,018,375 
Acquisition oftangible capital assets (I , 181,389,000) (785,018,923) (676,607,481) 

Increase in net debt (782,962,<XJ6) (326,316,855) (32,932,513) 

~ debt, Beginning of)'ffif (I ,037,953,439) (1,037,953,439) (1,005,020,926) 

Net debt, Fnd ofyear (1 ,820,915,505) (1,364,270,294) (I ,037,953,439) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended December 31, 201 3 

Operating 
Annual surplus 
Items not involving cash: 

Amortization 
Loss on sale of tangible capital assets 

Changes in non-cash assets and liabilities: 
Accounts receivable 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Employee benefit obligations 
Deferred revenue 
Deferred revenue-obligatory reserve funds 
Inventory 
Prepaid expenses 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents from operations 

Capital 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets 
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 
Net change in cash and cash equivalents from capital 

Investing 
Net change in investments 

Financing 
Long-tenn debt issued 
Long-tenn debt repaid 
Interest earned on own sinking funds 
Net change in cash and cash equivalents from financing 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 

Opening cash and cash equivalents 

Closing cash and cash equivalents 

2013 

$ 

291,958,780 

168,019,058 
2,576,192 

2,088,837 
120,041,015 

10,365,254 
98,023,471 

(43,864,176) 
(25,929) 

(4,643,426) 
644,539,076 

(785,0 18, 923) 
817,393 

(784,201,530) 

(346,1 02,593) 

458,209,840 
(79,450,635) 

(8,209,836} 
370,549,369 

(115,215,678) 

497,960,655 

382,744,977 

2012 

s 

483,337,585 

152,111 ,353 
3,018,375 

39,579,980 
92,968,942 
10,789,156 
33,064,999 
89,973,805 

(765,145) 
5,245,401 

909,324,451 

(676,607,481) 
727,399 

( 675,880,082) 

( 4 78,677,631) 

405,867,822 
(81,621 ,658) 

(5,867,823) 
318,378,341 

73,145,079 

424,815,576 

497,960,655 

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of these Consolidated Fmancial Statements. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 


December 31, 2013 

The Corporation of the Regional Municipality of York (the "Region") was incorporated as a municipality in 1971 by 
the Province of Ontario. The area municipalities within the regional boundaries include the towns of Aurora, East 
Gwillimbury, Georgina, Newmarket, Richmond Hill, Whitchurch-Stouffville, the Township of King, the City of 
Markham and the City of Vaughan. 

l. 	ACCOUNTING P OLICIES 

The consolidated fmancial statements of the Regional Municipality of York are the representations of 
management prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for local governments 
established by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Chartered Professional Accountants Canada 
(CPA Canada). 

The focus of PSAB financial statements is on the financial position of the Region and the changes thereto. The 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position reports the financial assets and liabilities, and the non financial 
assets and liabilities of the Region. Financial assets are those assets which could provide resources to discharge 
existing liabilities or finance future operations. Accumulated surplus represents the amount by which all assets 
exceed all liabilities. An accumulated surplus indicates that the Region has net resources that can be used to 
provide future services and meet its obligations. 

a) 	 Basis of Consolidation 

i) 	 These consolidated fmancial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in the 
Operating Fund ofall entities which are accountable to and controlled by the Region. They include the 
activities of all conunittees of Council, York Region Police Services Board, Housing York Inc. and 
York Region Rapid Transit Corporation (Rapidco). Inter-unit balances and transactions are eliminated 
from the consolidated financial statements. 

ii) 	 The financial activities of the sinking fund are disclosed separately in the sinking fund financial 
statements. 

iii) 	 Funds held in trust by the Region for the residents of Newmarket Health Centre and Maple Health 
Centre and their related operations are not included in the consolidated financial statements. The 
financial activity and position of the trust funds and donations received on behalf of the Centres are 
reported separately in the Residents' Trust Funds and Donation Account Statement of Financial 
Position, and Statement ofFinancial Activities. 

b) 	 Basis of Accounting 

i) 	 FuU Accrual Basis of Accounting 
The consol idated financial statements arc prepared using the full accrual basis of accounting. The 
accrual bas1s of accounting records revenue as it is earned and measurable Expenses are recognized as 
they are mcurred and measurable based upon receipt of goods or sen ices and or the creation of a legal 
obligation to pay. 

The annual cost of owning and using a capital asset (estimated amortization) is deducted from annual 
results. That is, a part of the cost of the asset is recognized in annual results in each of the periods of 
its use ful life. 

ii) 	 Cash and Casb Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include short-term highly liquid investments with a term to maturity of 120 
days or less after year end. 

ill) 	 Deferred Revenue-General 
Funds received for specific purposes are accounted for as deferred revenue until the Region d1schargcs 
the obligation wh1ch led to the receipt of the funds. 

0-1 14 1-1 	 p X 



THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2013 

iv) 	 Deferred Revenue-Obligatory Reserve Funds 
Development Charges, collected under the authority of Sections 33 to 35 of the Development Charges 
Act 1997, are reported as Deferred Revenue in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position in 
accordance with the recommendations of PSAB. Amounts applied to qualifying capital projects are 
recorded as revenues in the fiscal period in which the funds are expended on qualifying capital 
projects. 

The Region receives gas tax revenues under municipal funding agreements for the transfer of the 
revenues. These funds, by their nature, are restricted in their use and until applied to applicable works 
are recorded as deferred revenue. Amounts applied to qualifying projects are recorded as revenue in 
the fiscal period they are expended. 

v) 	 Government transfers 
Government trans fers are recognized in the period in which the events giving rise to the transfer occur, 
providing the transfers are authorized, any e ligibility criteria have been met, and reasonable estimates 
of the amounts can be made. They consist of grants and subsidies received for various operating and 
capital programs. 

On January I , 2013, the Region adopted Public Sector Accounting Standard PS 3410, Government 
Transfers. This standard was adopted on a prospective basis from the date of adoption. Under PS 
34 10, government contributions received or receivable are recognized in revenue once the eligibility 
criteria, if any, are met unless they meet the definition ofa liability. 

There were no adjustments required as a result of the adoption of this standard. 

vi) 	 Investments 
Investment income earned on surplus current fund and reserve funds (other than development charges) 
are reported as revenue in the period earned. Investment income on the development charge reserve 
funds is added to the fund balance and form part of the respective deferred revenue balances. 

Investments are carried at the lower ofcost and amortized cost. Any discount or premium is amortized 
over the remaining term of the investments. When there has been a loss in value that is other than 
temporary decline in value, the respective investment is written down to recognize the loss. 

vii) 	 Pensions and Employee Benefits 
The Region accounts for its participation in the Ontario Municipal Employee Retirement System 
(OMERS), a multi-employer public sector pension fund, as a defined benefit plan. Vacation 
entitlements are accrued for as entitlements are earned. Sick leave benefits are accrued where they are 
vested and subject to pay out when an employee leaves the Region's employ. 

Other post-employment benefits are accrued in accordance with the proJected benefit method prorated 
on service and management" s best esttmate of salary escalation and retirement ages of employees. 
Actuarial valuauons, where necessary for accounting purposes, are performed triennially. The 
discount rate used to determine the accrued benefit obligation was determined by reference to market 
interest rates at the measurement date on high-quality debt instruments with cash flows that match the 
timing and amount ofexpected benefit payments. Unamortized actuarial gains or losses are amortized 
on a straight-line basis over the expected average remaining service life of the related employee 
groups. Unamortized actuarial gains/losses for event-triggered liabilities, such as those determined as 
cla1ms related to Workers Safety and Insurance Board (WSIB) are amortized over the average 
expected penod during which the benefits \\Ill be paid. The cost of plan amendments is accounted for 
in the period they are adopted. 

Where apphcable, the Region has set as1de reserve funds intended to fund these obligations. e1ther in 
full or m part These reserYe funds were created under muruc1pal by-la\\ and do not meet the 
defirutton of a plan asset under PSAB 3250 Retirement Benefits. Therefore, for the purpose of these 
financtal statements, the plans are cons1dered unfunded. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 


December 31, 2013 

viii) 	Segment Disclosure 
A segment is defined as a distinguishable activity or group of activities of a government for which it is 
appropriate to separately report financial information to achieve the objectives of the standard. The 
segment information is provided by financial statement guideline per PSAB 2700. For additional 
information, see Note 13. 

Certain allocation methodologies are employed in the preparation of the segmented fmancial information. 
Net taxation/user charges and other revenues have been allocated to the segment based upon the segments 
that generate the revenues. Transfer payments have been allocated to the segment based upon the purpose 
for which the transfers were made. Development contributions received were allocated to the segment for 
which the contribution was collected. 

ix) 	Budget Figures 
Regional Municipality of York's Council completes a review of its operating budget each year. The 
approved budget for 2013 is included in the budget figures presented in the Consolidated Statement of 
Operations. The budget as approved by Regional Council includes those expenses which are part of 
current tax levies and user charges. 

in$ (000s) 

Revenues 


Approved budgets 2,955,050 


Transfer from other funds (193,335) 


Proceeds ofdebt issued for Regional purpose (744,021) 


Other units 28,203 


Total revenues 2,045,897 


Expenses 


Approved budgets 2,955,050 


Transfer to other funds (230,268) 


Capital expenses (597,025) 


Debt principal repayments (178,0 19) 


Amortization (151, 134) 


Othe units 49,169 


Total expenses 1,798,604 


Annual surplus 	 247,293 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 


December 31, 2013 

x) Tangible Capital Assets 
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly attributable to 
acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost, less residual value, of the 
tangible capital assets is amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives in number of 
years as follows: 
Land Infmite 
Land Improvements 20 
Buildings 15-60 
Leasehold Improvement Lease Term 
Water and Wastewater-Linear 60-100 by materials 
Water and Wastewater-Discrete facilities 15-60 by asset components 
Hardware and Software 3-7 
Equipment and Machinery 3-30 
Vehicles 3-18 
Roads (Road surface/Structure) 15/45 
Bridges (Deck/Understructure) 25/75 
Culverts 60 
Level Crossings 40 
Intersections 15 

xi) Use of Estimates 
Since precise determination of many assets and liabilities is dependent upon future events, the preparation 
of periodic fmancial statements necessarily involves the use ofestimates and approximations. 

xii) Tax Revenue 
Property tax revenue is recognized on an accrual basis using the approved tax rates and the anticipated 
assessment related to the current year. 

On January I , 2013 the Region adopted Public Sector Accounting Standard PS 3510, Tax Revenue. This 
standard was adopted on a prospective basis from the date of adoption. Under PS 3510, municipalities 
recognize property tax revenue using the approved tax rate and the anticipated assessment. The standard 
requires that tax revenue is reported net of tax concessions. Tax transfers are included as an expense and 
taxes levied on behalf of others in a flow through arrangement are not reported in the statement of 
operations. 

There were no adjustments required as a result of the adoption of this standard. 

2. COST-SHARED CAPITAL P ROJECTS 

The Regional Municipality of York paid the Region of Peel and the City of Toronto $86.0 million in 20 13 
($97.0 million in 20 12) to cover the Region's portion of capital costs incurred to construct additional water and 
wastewater infrastructure. While the contributions were made under a cost-sharing arrangement. the Region 
believes that they possess the risks and rewards of ownership of these assets to the level of their contribution. 
These costs are recorded in Assets under Construction and are amortized over the period that the benefits are 
realized once the assets are in use. 

3. INVESTMENTS 

Included in cash and cash equivalents are short-term investments of$221,984,994 (20 12 - $198,512.221) with a 
market value of$221,973,229 (2012- $198,321,353). 

Long-tem1 investments of $2,114,194.067 (2012- $1,768,091,474) have a market value of $2.111.614,965 
(2012- $ 1,8 11 ,049,822). 

Cash and cash equivalents and long-term investments include $386,770,613 (2012- $430,634,789) of restricted 
funds as required under legislation to fund obligatory reserve funds. 

The yields on investments held range from l.l0% to 4.63% (0.91% to 4.88% in 20 12). 
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4. 	 ACCOUNTS R ECEIVABLE 

This amount is comprised of the following: 

2013 2012 

$ $ 

Govenunentofe2nada 18,433,455 23,288,262 

Govenunent ofOntario 12,524,717 3,932,396 

Other Mwlicipalities 72,627,680 81,170,932 

Others 74,660,311 72,030,757 

178,246,163 180,422,347 

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 0 87,347 

178,246,163 180,335,000 

5. 	 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

a) 	 The balance for long-term liabilities reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position is made 
up of the following items. Interest rates and maturity dates for the debts range from 2% to 8% and from 
January 2, 2014 to December I, 2051. 

The total gross amount of the long-term liabilities to be retired by sinking funds is $2,064,851,002 (2012­
$1,737,636,551). The amount of the sinlcing funds assets available to retire debt is $360,149,002 (2012­
$237,363,447). 

2013 20 12 

$ $ 

Total long-term liabilities incurred by the Municipality 
including those incurred on behalf of area municipalities and 
outstanding at the end of the year 2,430,830,433 2,187,287,149 

Mortgages payable by Housing York Inc. 	 78,114,508 82.428,107 

2,508,944, 941 2,269,715,256 

Retirement and smkmg fund 	 360,149,002 237,363,447 

Less: Recoverable from area municipalities 	 218,121,565 226,655.694 

Net long-tem1 liablitlles at the end of the year 	 2,650,972,378 2.280,423.009 
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b) Net long-tenn liabilities are repayable as follows: 

2014 $184,931,0 15 

2015 186,656,320 

2016 134,278,898 

2017 122,151 ,074 

2018 88,471,716 

Thereafter I ,607,218 ,872 

Net sinking fund debt repayable according to actuarial recommendations 327,264,483 

$2,650,972,3 78 

Long-term liabilities are financed through a combination of development charges, water and sewer rates, 
and tax levy. 

c) Charges for Net Long-term Liabilities 

Total interest charges for the year for net long-term liabilities which are included in the Consolidated 
Statement of Operations are $106.567,310 (2012- $93,369,518). 

6. DEFERRED REVENUE 

Deferred revenue set aside for specific purposes by legislation, regulation, or agreement as at December 31 , 
composed of: 

Balance at Inflows Transferred Balance at 

December 31 , out December 31, 

2012 20 13 

$ $ $ $ 

Deferred capital grants 54,844,514 397,227,025 (257,5 19, 11 9) 194,552,420 
Security deposits and agreements 55,970,8 12 23,962,03 1 (61,692,566) 18,240,277 
Other 11 ,661 ,901 1, 114,548 {5,068,448~ 7,708,001 

Total deferred revenue-general 122,477,227 422,303,604 (324,280, 133) 220,500,698 

Development charges 377,638,788 168,080,729 (221.157 .590) 324.561,927 
Gas tax 52,996,001 45,010.415 (35.797,730) 62,208,686 

Total obligatory reserve funds 430,634,789 213,091,144 (256,955,320) 386,770,6 13 
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7. EMPLOYEE B ENEFlTS 

The amounts represent liabilities established for accrual accounting purposes expected to be settled in future 
periods. In some cases, reserves have been established to fund these amounts. In other cases, the liabil ities are 
to be funded from future years' budgetary allocations. Net increase in the total amount is $ 10,365,254. 

2013 2012 

$ $ 

Poot enpo)'1TD1lxrefits (c) 55,62l,M9 :JJ,fb8,627 

Vestal sick leave h:refits (a) 25,125,896 25,<ro,048 

~termdisabilityclain"E (e) 22,283,109 20,%3,480 

Vocatioo ~yable 17;lS7,fJ38 15,WJ,l71 

\Mxi<ploce Safetyard !mJrarreBoord (\\'SIB) (d) ~ 11 ,510,971 

134,1.97,551 123,&32.297 

Actuarial valuations: 

The following table sets out the extrapolated resul ts for each of the plans as at December 3 1, 2013. 


Post 
employment Vested sick Long term 20 13 total 

benefits leave benefits disability WS IB 
s $ $ $ $ 

Accrued benetlt ltablllly, 
beginning of year 50,668,627 25,080,048 20.963,480 11.510,971 I08,223,126 

Current service cost 3,362.316 3,908,917 3,530,666 3,709,765 14,511,664 

Amortization of (gain) loss 511,408 I ,572,690 (626,000) 365.299 I ,823,397 

Interest cost 2,490,092 I ,972,064 718,127 661,875 5,842, 158 

Benefi t payments and adjustments (1,4 10,794) p.407,823) (2,303,164) ~2.338,951) ( 13,460, 732) 
Accrued benefit liability, end of 
year 55,621,649 25,125,896 22.283,109 13,908,959 116,939,613 

The actuarial valuations of the plans were based upon a number of assumptions about future events, which reflect 
management's best esttmate. The followmg represents the more significant assumptions made: 

Post employment Long term 
and sick leave disability WSIB 

Expected inflation rate 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 

Expected level of salary increases 3.00% 3.00% N/A 

Interest discount rate 4.25% 4.25% 4.75% 

Total employee benefit obligations amount to $134,197.551 (2012- $123.832.297). 
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a) 	 Liability for Vested Sick Leave Benefits 


Regional Operations 

Commencing in 2000, the accumulated sick leave plan was replaced by a Short-term Disability plan for 
employees in Regional Operations. Under the plan, employees with five or more years of service were 
given the option of receiving a cash payout of fifty percent of the balance in their sick leave bank as at 
December 31 , 1999 or deferring payment until termination of employment with the Region. The estimated 
actuarial value of the liability of the accumulated days for employees who chose the deferral option is 
$951,475 (2012- $ 1, I 03,376) at the end of the year. Employees who had less than five years of service at 
December 31, 1999 were given the option on the fifth anniversary of their hire date to either receive 
payment for the value of accumulated sick days as at December 31, 1999 or defer payment until 
termination of their employment with the Region. A reserve has been established for the past service 
liability and is reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. The reserve balance at 
December 31, 2013 is $4,666,478 (2012- $4,922,40 1). 

Police Services 
For members hired before July 22, 2013, the sick leave benefit plan provides for an accumulative unused 
sick leave bank. After five years of service, members are entitled to a cash payment of one-half of the sick 
bank balance to a maximum of six months salary when they leave the municipality's employ. Members 
were provided with an election to opt for a cash settlement of one-half of their sick banks hours up to a 
maximum of six months' salary, in one of three election windows on September I , 2013, September 1, 
2014 or September 1, 2015. Members hired after July 22, 2013 and members who have elected the cash 
settlement are enrolled in an accumulative unused sick leave plan without a cash payment. 

The actuarial liability for the accumulated days to the extent that they have vested and could be taken in 
cash by an employee on termination amounted to $24,174,421 (2012 - $23,976,672). A reserve was 
established to provide for a portion of the Police Services past service liability and the balance at the end of 
the year is $11,698,751 (2012- $18,514,677) and is included in accumulated surplus in the Consolidated 
Statement of Financial Position. 

According to an independent actuarial valuation report dated February II , 20 I 4 the total estimated liability 
for both regional operations and police services is $25,125,896 (2012- $25,080,048). 

b) 	 Pension Agreement 
The Region contributes to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System (OMERS), a multi ­
employer plan on behalf of approximately 5,299 members of its staff. The plan is a defined benefit plan 
and specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based on length of 
credited service and average earnings. 

In 2013, employer contribution amounts to $49,954,145 (2012 - $40,928,585) and is included as an 
expense in the Consolidated Statement ofOperations. Employee contributions also amount to $49,954,145 
(20 12 - $40,928,585). 

The OMERS pension plan has a deficit of $8.6 billion at December 31, 2013 based on actuarial valuation 
of plan assets. OMERS increased contributions for both employers and employees by 0.9% for 2013. If 
actuarial surpluses are not available to offset the existing deficit and subsidize future contributions, 
additional increases in the contributions may be required. 

c) 	 Post Employment Benefits 
Employees who retire under the OMERS pension plan at age fifty or greater with a minimum of twenty 
years of service with the Region, are entitled to continued coverage for extended health and dental benefits. 
Those retirees from age 65 to age 75 are eligible to a health care spending account of$2,000 per year. 

According to an independent actuarial valuation report dated February 11 , 2014 the total future cost 
associated with these benefits is $55.621 ,649 (2012 - $50,668,627) and is reported in the Consolidated 
Statement ofFinancial Position. 
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d) 	 Workplace Safety and Insurance Board 
Under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act, the Region is a self-insured employer (Schedule II) for all 
of its employees. 

According to an independent actuarial valuation dated February 5, 2014 the estimated liability for all 
claims incurred to December 31, 2013 is $13,908,959 (2012 - $1 1,510,971) and is reported in the 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. The unamortized actuarial loss as at December 31, 2013 is 
$1,825,618 (2012- $2,190,917). 

e) 	 Long-Term Disability Self Funding Arrangement 
In October 2002, the Region adopted a self-insured arrangement for its long-term disability benefit (LTD). 
Under this arrangement, the Region funds its own claims through a segregated reserve and contracts with 
an insurance carrier to adjudicate and administer all claims on an Administrative Services Only (ASO) 
basis. According to an independent actuarial valuation dated February 5, 20 14 the estimated liability for 
claims incurred is $22,283,109 (2012 - $20,963,480) as at December 3 1, 2013 and is reported in the 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. 

8. 	 CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMITMENTS 

a) 	 York-Toronto Water Supply Agreements 
Under the tem1s of agreements with the City of Toronto, the Region is entitled to purchase water at rates 
established every year. Payments in respect of these agreements amounted to $20,186,688 (2012 ­
$21 ,654,880). Payments under these agreements are financed by area municipalities based on water 
consumption. 

e) 	 York-Peel Water Supply Agreement 
In 200 I, the Region entered into an inter-regional water serv1cmg agreement with the Regional 
Municipality of Peel. Under the terms of the agreement, the Region is entitled to purchase water from Peel 
at a negotiated rate. York Region began purchasing water from the Region of Peel in late 2005. The 
agreement provides for a buy-in payment of $52.4 million, payable in three equal instalments of $17.46 
million. The final instalment was paid in 2012. York Region is required to pay operating costs to the 
Region of Peel for water consumption based on the York Wholesale Rate, commencing in 2005, through to 
2031 and beyond. The York Wholesale Rate includes a component to be contributed to a Capital Repair 
and Replacement Reserve. Payments under this agreement form part of Region's operating expenses and 
will be financed by the area municipalities based on water consumption. 

c) 	 Operating Leases 
Under the terms of various operating lease agreements, future minimum payments for the next 5 years are 
approximately as follows: 

$ 
2014 	 8,444,000 

2015 	 6,904,000 

2016 	 5,104,000 

2017 	 4,094,000 

2018 	 3,953,000 
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d) 	 York Rapid Transit Plan 
In 2002, the Region entered into a public-private partnership with York Consortium 2002 to implement the 
York Rapid Transit Plan (YRTP). The YRTP was developed from the Region's Transportation Master 
Plan, which identified the need to implement a rapid network that would reduce the rate of traffic 
congestion and support economic and residential growth. The future works for the YRTP has been 
rebranded as VI VAN ext and includes the construction of the Yonge and Spadina Subway extensions, and 
also extension and conversion to Light Rail Transit. Implementation of the YRTP is estimated to cost 
$21.2 billion to 2031 and is contingent upon future funding agreements with provincial and federal 
governments. 

e) 	 Toronto-York Subway Extension Project 
In 2007, the Region signed an agreement with the City of Toronto and the Toronto Transit Commission to 
design and construct an extension of the Spadina subway line that will extend from Downsview Station in 
northwest Toronto into York Region. The subway extension is a part of the Region's Transportation 
Master Plan which will support economic and residential growth. 

The project cost is estimated to be $2.6 billion over 9 years and will be funded by contributions from the 
Federal Government, the Province of Ontario, the City of Toronto and York Region. The Region's 
estimated contribution is $351 million of which $54.5 million has been paid to the project this year. 

f) 	 York Region Hospitals Capital Funding 
In 2009, Regional Council approved a memorandum of understanding (MOU) between the Region and 
York regional hospitals which provides direction for capital funding of the four regional hospitals from 
2009 to 203 1. Under the MOU, the Region provides funding for approved projects and their associated 
approved eligible costs. Total capital distributions to Markham Stouffville Hospital, Southlake Regional 
Health Centre, Vaughan Health Can1pus of Care and Mackenzie Health amount to approximately $342 
million over the period of the MOU. 

9. 	 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

a) 	 Long-term Liabilities 
The Region is contingently liable for long-term liabilities for which the responsibility for the payment of 
principal and interest is recoverable from other municipalities. 

b) 	 Public Liability Insurance 
The Region's public liability insurance limits arc set at $50,000,000. Environmental impairment liability is 
fully self-insured by the Region. The Region has maintained the same self-insured retention (SIR) levels 
over the past few years. Most policies have an SIR of$ 100,000 per occurrence wtth the exception of Crime 
which has an SIR of$0 and Property and Boiler which have each have an SIR of$50,000 per occurrence. 

The Region eshmates that the liability as at December 3 1, 2013 for all outstanding public liability claims ts, 
$4,650,783 (2012 - $5,351,214). The total reserve available for public liability and environmental 
impairment is $19.019,051 (2012- $23,710.779). 

c) 	 Contingencies 
The Region, in the course of its operations. is subject to c laims. lawsuits and other contingencies. Accruals 
have been made 111 specific instances where it 1s probable that liabilities will be mcurred and where such 
liabilities can be reasonably estimated. Although it 1s possible that liabilities may arise in other instances 
for which no accruals have been made. the RegiOn does not believe that such an outcome will significantly 
impair its operations or have a material adverse effect on its financial pos1110n. 
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10. 	PROVINCIAL O FFENCES ADMINISTRATION 

The Region administers prosecutions and the collection of related fines and fees under the authority of the 
Provincial Offences Act ("POA"). The POA is a procedural law for administering and prosecuting provincial 
offences, including those committed under the llighway Traffic Act, Compulsory Automobile Insurance Act, 
Trespass to Property Act, Liquor Licence Act, Municipal By-laws and minor federal offences. Offenders may 
pay their fines at any court office in Ontario, at which time their receipt is recorded in the Integrated Courts 
Offences Network system ("ICON"). The Region recognizes fine revenue when the receipt of funds is 
recorded by ICON regardless of the location where payment is made. 

The gross revenue is comprised primarily of fines levied under Part I, II and lli (including delay penalties) for 
POA charges. The total revenue for 2013 amounts to $15,664,208 (20 12 - $15,446,897) and the net loss 
amounts to $1,954,282 (20 12 - $1,926,361 ). Balances arising from operation of the POA offices are 
consolidated with these financial statements. 

11. LIMITATION ON PROPERTY TAX INCREASES AND FUNDING FOR B USINESS 

CLASSES UNDER THE MUNICIPAL A CT, 2001 

The Municipal Act, 200 I (the "Act") has required that municipalities to limit (cap) any annual assessment 
related property tax increases on the Commercial, Industrial, and Multi-Residential property classes. The Act 
also enables municipalities to retain assessment related property decreases in order to fund the cost ofcapping. 

Since 2005, York Region Council has approved the application of all municipal capping options available under 
section 329.1 of the Act to accelerate movement towards current value assessment (CV A) level taxes for 
affected properties. A summary of these options is presented below: 
I. 	 Assessment-related property tax increases are limited to an amount which is the greatest of lO% of the 

previous year's annualized capped taxes, or 5% of the previous year's annualized full CVA taxes. 
2. 	 Capped or clawed back properties that are within $250 of their full CV A taxes are moved to the CV A tax 

level in the current taxation year and are kept there for subsequent taxation years. 
3. 	 Eligible new construction/new-to-class properties are taxed at a minimum of I 00% of their full CV A tax 

value for the 2009 and subsequent taxation years. 
4. 	 A property that reached its CVA tax level in the previous year is excluded from the capping program in the 

current and subsequent taxation years. 
5. 	 Properties that were in a capped or clawed back position in the previous year that, as a result of 

reassessment, would have crossed over in the current year (i.e. move from clawed back to capped, or from 
capped to clawed back) are kept at the CV A tax level in the current and subsequent taxation years. 

The Region is also required by the Act to perform a "hankering" role for the local mumcipalities to ensure that 
they would have neither a surplus nor a shortfall as a result of this process. The Region will only transfer funds 
bet\veen area municipalities as part of the tax related adjustments and does not mcur any direct financial costs to 
area municipalities. However, if there is a shortfall m the amount of property tax decreases available to fund 
the cost of capping protection in a particular property class, the Region and the local municipalities share the 
cost of the shortfall on a pro rata basis equal to the proportionate share of the property taxes levied. 
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12. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 


Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserves and reserve funds as follows: 


2013 2012 

$ $ 

Surplus 
-Invested in tangible capital assets 3,040,556,854 3,242,465,265 
-Other 2126672066 {1,811,4962 

3206222232920 3,240,653 ,769 
Reserves 

-Equipment/vehicle replacement 55,599,917 51,460,918 
-Working capital 42,494,163 41,819,788 
-Group benefits 2,985,451 2,472,905 
-Vacation pay 857,542 833,239 
-OMERS (Type 3) 94 604 94,604 

Total Reserves 10220312677 96,681,454 

04 14 14 P. 19 



T HE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2013 

2013 2012 

$ $ 

Reserve Funds 
-Sinking fund 324,607,427 0 
-Roads infrastructure 289,475,583 125,747,553 
-Debt reduction 229,624,260 0 
-Social housing development 11 1,172,951 123,554,836 
-Facilities rehabilitation and replacement 67,567,430 194,384,540 
-Solid waste management 53,059,269 51,494,010 
-Capital reserve fund 50,828,766 2 19,797,402 
-Tax stabilization 47,447,606 47,398,636 
-Regionally owned housing 43,126,404 12,580,478 
-Move Ontario 29,205,853 29,884,167 
-Capital reserve-water and sewer 29,101,424 (22,427,325) 
-Long-term disability 28,316,126 27,698,158 
-Roads capital 26,640,336 57,760, 160 
-Social assistance 26,434,218 26,146,128 
-Hospital financing 21 ,493,947 15,692,626 
-Insurance 19,019,051 23,710,779 
-Non-profit housing capital 18,369,438 12,965,404 
-Sick leave 16,365,229 23,437,078 
-Workers' compensation schedule II 16,333,436 14,999,490 
-IT development 11 ,473,202 9,959,839 
-Land bank 10,000,000 0 
-Fiscal stabilization 8,930,142 8,677,065 
-Transit 8,917,365 15,468,003 
-Innovation 4,342,063 4,219,010 
-Fuel cost stabi lization 2,187,732 1,083,207 
-Land securement 2,170,140 3,011,580 
-Seized funds 279,866 278,297 
-Alternative community living 229,789 213,356 
-Insurance claims and certificate system 11,001 10,689 
-Gas tax 0 1,595,505 
-Provincial highways 0 1,175,953 
-Computer software acquisition 0 1,175,024 

Total Reserve Funds 1,496, 730,054 I ,031 ,69 1 ,648 

Total 4,660,985,651 4,369,026,871 
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13. SEGMENT DISCLOSURE 

The Region is a municipal government which provides a wide range of services to its residents that include 

general government, protection to persons and property, transportation, environmental, health and emergency 

services, community services, and planning and development services. 


Gt!neral Government 

General government comprises of the Council, the Chair's Office, the Office of the Chief Administrative 

Officer, Corporate Services and Finance Departments. These divisions and branches supply administrative and 

financial leadership for the Regional Corporation. 


Protection to persons and property 

Protection to persons and property consists of the activities of Police Services Board and York Regional Police. 

Their mandate is to ensure the safety of the lives and property of citizens; prevent crime from occurring; detect 

offenders; and enforce the law. 


Transportation services 

This division operates and delivers regional infrastructure involving roadways, public transit, traffic systems, 

and bridges and culverts. 

York Region Rapid Transit Corporation's principal activity is the design and delivery of York Region's rapid 

transit systems. 


Environmental services 

The department is responsible for water treatment and distribution, wastewater collection and treatment, and 

sol id waste disposal and diversion. It also delivers infrastructure projects, both for new and expanded assets 

and major rehabilitation ofexisting assets. 


Health and emergency services 

It provides a variety of health related programs and services that contribute to healthy communities through 

partnerships, promotiOn, prevention, protection and enforcement. Staff members render programs such as land 

ambulance service, immumzation, nutrition, mental health and health inspection. 


Community services 

Children's Services plans, manages and coordinates a Region-wide child care services. Long Term Care 

operates long-term care facilities for seniors. The Ontario Works and Ontario Disability Support Programs 

deliver a range ofprograms providing employment and financial assistance to residents in need. 


Social housing 

Social housing is responsible for administrating social housing providers, the rent supplement programs and 

managing a social housing waiting list. 

Housing York Inc. 1s a non-profit housing corporation providing affordable rental unus for its residents 


Planning and development services 

This unit provides a long-term comprehensive approach to planning and development processes to ensure the 

efficient use of land and community infrastructure. Services include long-range capital planning, development 

review, building perm1ts and inspection services. 
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General Protection to Transportation Environmental Health and 
goverrunent persons and servtces services emergency 

property services 

Revenues 
Net taxation/user charges 
Transfer payments 
Development contributions 
Fees and services 
Interest 
Other 

879,571,249 
-59,837 

12,645,778 
17,552, 174 
11 ,653 ,485 

8,967,738 
6,022,846 

15,599,465 
563,779 

I ,6 15,853 

-
207,425,900 

28,542,058 
64,884,791 

7,141,382 
9,348,559 

210,364,9 13 
16,965,873 77,130,657 

184,625,783 254,792 
15,187,055 1,027,945 

I ,327,470 1,240,768 
26,122,705 

92 1 ,362,849 32,769,68 1 3 17,342,690 454,593,799 79,654,162 
Expenses 
Salaries and benefits 55,266,042 256,910,673 53,486,9 18 38,974,959 97,021,259 
Interest payments 345,962 3,179,215 10,239,735 87,923,785 240,783 
Operating expenses 42,248,682 26,759,948 403,536,44 1 191 ,488 ,368 13,628,286 
Government transfers 6,692,484 7,515,175 4,561 ,972 
Amortization 12,763,229 11,698,461 73,833,637 58,346,332 4,023,523 

117,316,399 298,548,297 541 ,096, 731 384,248,6 19 119,475,823 


Annual Surplus (Deficit) 804,046,450 (265,778,616) (223,754,041) 70,345,180 (39,82 1,661) 
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Community Social Planning and Total Total 
services housing development 20 13 2012 

services 

Revenues 
Net taxation/user charges - 1,089,936,162 1.045,033,613 
Transfer payments 151,962,634 32,634,324 347,700 495,374,989 451 ,832,095 
Development contributions 282,869 1,330,8 10 98,432 221,157,590 378,684,812 
Fees and services 1,937,698 18,85 1,067 27,7 11 I30,161,510 118,252,150 
Interest 765,860 4,268,944 32,860,377 39,469,873 
Other 958,190 38,572,258 88,271,050 44,676,328 

155,907,251 95,657,403 473,843 2,057,761,678 2,077,948,871 
Expenses 
Salaries and benefits 65,627.489 10,296,907 5.934,283 583,518,530 531,911.982 
Interest payments 30,290 4,607,540 106,567,310 93.369,518 
Operating expenses 83,497,581 70,416,178 1,871,118 833,446,602 722,683,022 
Government transfers 55,481,767 74,251,398 94,535,41 I 
Amortization 1,192,684 6,117,978 43,214 168,0 19,058 152,111 ,353 

205,829,8 11 91,438,603 7,848,615 I,765,802,898 1,594,611 ,286 

Annual Surplus (Deficit) (49,922,560) 4,218,800 (7,374,772) 291,958,780 483,337,585 
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14. T ANGffiLE CAPITAL ASSETS 

Cost 

Balance at 

December 31 

2012 Additions Di s2osa ls 

Balance at 

December 31 

2013 

s $ $ $ 

Land 364,695,553 19,242,733 383,938,286 

Land improvements 140,753,436 23,118,001 (421,156) 163,450,281 

Buildings 1,414,903 ,027 182,579,235 (7 ,820,262) I ,589,662,000 

Equipment and machinery 452,661 ,3 19 I 01,989,335 ( 6,207 ,977) 548,442,677 

Vehicles 275,065,969 13,474,256 (9,839,430) 278,700,795 

Roads infrastructure I ,305, 171 ,663 82,354,910 (16,109,738) 1,371,416,835 

Water/sewer infrastruc ture I ,121,888,684 22,664,941 1,144,553,625 

Assets under construction 1 ,94 7' 1 0 1 ,254 339,595,512 2,286,696,766 

Total 7,022,240,905 785,018,923 (40 ,398,563) 7,766,861,265 

Balance at Balance at 

December 31 Amortization December 31 

Accumula ted amortization 2012 Disposals ex2enses 2013 

$ $ $ $ 

Land 0 0 

Land improvements 66,487,420 (300,316) 6,636,936 72,824,040 

Buildings 442,160,235 (7 ,041 ,223) 40,961,778 476,080,790 

Equipment and machinery 251,203,660 (6,193,313) 44,269,136 289,279,483 

Vehicles 108,815,737 (8,847,115) 22,482,785 122,451,407 

Roads infrastructure 635,750,593 (14,623,011) 41,859,653 662,987,235 

Water/sewer infrastructure 120,52 1,575 II ,808,770 132,330,345 

Total I ,624,939,220 (37,004,978) 168,0 19,058 I ,755,953,300 

Land 

Land improvements 

Buildings 

Equipment and machinery 

Vehicles 

Roads infrastructure 

Water sewer infrastructure 

Assets under construction 

Total 

Net book value 

December 31 

2012 

s 
364,695,553 

74,266,016 

972,742,792 

201,457,659 

166,250,232 

669.421,070 
1,001,367,109 

1,947,101,254 

5,397,301,685 

Net book value 

December 31 
2013 

$ 

383,938,286 

90,626,241 

I, 113,581 ,2 10 
259,163,194 

156,249,388 

708,429,600 

1,012,223.280 
2,286,696,766 

6,010,907.965 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 3 J, 20 I 3 

15. TRANSFER PAYMENT REVENUE 

Provincial grants 

Transit 

Social assistance 

Child care 

Pub! ic health 

Ambulance 

Services for seniors 

Housing 

Police 

Roadways 

Other 

Environmental services 


Federal grants 

Transit 


Gas tax 

Housing 

Other 

Environmental services 

Social assistance 

Public health 

Roadways 


Total transfer payments 

2013 2012 
$ $ 

168,262,893 175,548,100 
67,990,062 62,489,827 
61,199,528 46,795,183 
46,796,572 45,877,270 
30,318,598 27,298,365 
22,276,713 21,752,867 
19,251,575 13,739,329 
8,967,738 9,033,102 
3,676,031 303,333 

497,004 1,734,603 

0 240,000 
429,236,714 404,811,979 

25,484,597 2,925,345 
21,397,730 5,956,041 
13,382,749 9,794,407 
3,860,258 793,581 
1,965,874 27,224,624 

27,729 4,003 
15,487 18,782 
3,851 303,333 

66,138,275 47,020,116 


495,374,989 45 1,832,095 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 


December 31, 2013 

16. M ETROLINX PROJECT 

Under an agreement signed with Metrolinx, the Region receives funds from Metrolinx to build assets that upon 
completion will be transferred to Metrolinx. The following chart summarizes the amounts spent on the project. 

Included in revenue is $160,484,452 received from Metrolinx for assets that are owned and controlled by 
MetroliiLx. The corresponding expense amounts are recorded in Transportation Services expense. 

The total commitment to this project over the life of the contract is $1,755,000,000. 

s 
Spent prior to 2013 227,160,745 

Spent in 20 13 160,484,452 

Total spent 387,645, 197 

Total commitment l '755,000,000 


Balance to be spent l ,367,354,803 
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KPMG LLP Telephone (416) 228· 7000 
Yonge Corporate Centre Fax (416) 228-7123 
4100 Yonge Street Su1te 200 Internet wwwkpmg ca 
Toronto ON M2P 2H3 
Canada 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of The Regional Municipality of York 

We have audited the financial statements of the sinking funds of The Regional Municipality of York, which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2013, the statement of financial activities and change in fund 
balance for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility far the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we 
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an optnion 
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the sinking 
funds of The Regional Municipality of York as at December 31, 2013, the results of its operations and changes tn 1ts 
financial position for the year then ended in accordance w1th Canadian public sector accountmg standards. 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

April 28, 2014 
Toronto, Canada 



THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK 

Sinking Fund Statement of Financial Position 

As at December 31,2013 

Financial Assets 
Investments - at amortized cost (Note 1) 
Interest receivable 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Actuarial requirement for retirement of the 
Sinking Fund (Note 2) 

Fund balance 

Total Liabilities and Fund Position 

2013 2012 
$ $ 

358,906,450 237,363,447 
1,242,552 

360,149,002 237,363,447 


359,111,338 237,206,766 
1,037,664 156,681 

360,149,002 237,363,447 


THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK 

Sinking Fund Statement of Financial Activities and Change in Fund Balance 
For the year ended December 31, 2013 

Revenues 
Contributions from: 


Area Municipalities 

Regional Corporation 


Total contributions 

Interest and capital gains 
Total revenues 

Expenses 
Actuarial requirement for the year 

Change in Fund Balance 
Opening Fund Balance 

Closing Fund Balance 

Budget 
s 

2013 
$ 

2012 
$ 

7,405,437 
100,887,11 9 
1 08,292,556 

7,395,877 
100,887,122 
108,282,999 

6,954,386 
82,810,843 
89,765,229 

14,164,057 
122,456,613 

14,502,553 
122,785,552 

6,641,625 
96,406,854 

( 121 ,904,572) 
552,041 
156,681 

(121,904,569) 
880,983 
156,681 

(96,899,754) 
(492,900) 

649,581 

708,722 1,037,664 156,681 


The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of these Financial Statements. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK 

Notes to the Sinking Fund Financial Statements 


December 31, 20 13 

The Regional Municipality of York's sinking fund is a separate fund maintained for the purpose of providing 
periodic repayments ofall debts to be retired by means of sinking funds. 

1. INVESTMENTS 

All investments are purchased with the intention of holding them until maturity. They are recorded at cost, 
price adjusted annually for amortization of discount or premium on a present value basis as determined at the 
time of purchase with the amount of such amortization included in the interest earned on the Statement of 
Financial Activities and Change in Fund Balance. The investments have a market value of$357,895,788 (20 12 
- $249,414,397). 

2. ACTUARIAL REQUIREMENTS 

The actuarial requirements of the sinking fund represent the amounts levied during the year as set out in the 
sinking fund debenture by-law plus interest thereon capitalized at a rate of 2% or 3% per annum compounded 
annually. Any excess revenue over these requirements is included in the sinking fund balance. 
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KPMG LLP Telephone (416) 228-7000 
Yonge Corporate Centre Fax (416) 228-7123 
4100 Yonge Street Sutte 200 Internet wwwkpmg.ca 
Toronto ON M2P 2H3 
Canada 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of The Regional Municipality of York 

We have audited the financial statements of residents' trust funds and donation account of The Regional Municipality 
of York, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2013 and the statement of financial 
activities for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we 
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to prov1de a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial posit1on of the funds held 
m trust and its donation account by The Regional Municipality of York as at December 31, 2013, the results of its 
operations and changes in its financial position for the year then ended m accordance w1th Canadian public sector 
accounting standards. 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

April 28, 2014 
Toronto, Canada 
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T H E R E GIONAL M UNICIPALITY OF YORK 

Residents ' Trust Funds and Donation Account 

Statement of Financial Position 

As at December 31, 20 13 

Trust Donation 2013 2012 
$ $ $ $ 

Financial Assets 
Cash 152,955 50,557 203,512 216,468 
Residents' petty cash 0 5,500 

Total Assets 152,955 50,557 203,512 221,968 

Fund Balances 152,955 50,557 203,512 221,968 

THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK 

Residents' Trust Funds and Donation Account 

Statement of Financial Activities 
For the year ended December 31, 20 13 

Trust Donation 2013 2012 
$ $ $ $ 

Fund balances, beginning of year 173,769 48,199 221,968 216,290 

Source of funds: 
Deposits on behalf of residents 396,340 1,905 398,245 394,150 
Interest earned on deposits 1,453 1,453 2,110 

396,340 3,358 399,698 396,260 
Use of funds: 

Withdrawals (417, 154) (I ,000) (418,154) (390,582) 

Net activity (20,814) 2,358 p8,456) 5,678 

Fund balances, end of year 152,955 50,557 203,512 221,968 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial Statements 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK 
Notes to the Residents' Trust Funds and Donation Account 

Statement of Financial Position and Financial Activities 
December 31, 2013 

1. 	 A CCOUNTING POLICIES 

a) 	 These financial statements reflect the financial activity and financial position of funds held in trust by the 
Regional Municipality of York (the 'Region') for residents ofNewmarket Health Centre and Maple Health 
Centre, and funds donated to the facilities. 

b) 	 Funds held in trust and monies received by way of donation are invested by the Region on behalf of the 
residents. Interest is credited to the funds based on the average yield earned by the Region on its 
investments. 

2. 	 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

a) 	 Cash and investments are recorded at cost. 

b) 	 Deposits on behalf of residents are reported upon receipt and interest income is reported on the accrual 
basis ofaccounting. Withdrawals are reported in the period in which they are made. 
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Presentation to Audit Committee 
 

June 12, 2014 
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Agenda 

 Key Reporting Requirements 

 2013 Financial Statement results 

Audit Committee / June 12, 2014 



 Slide 3 Audit Committee / June 12, 2014 

Reporting Requirements 

 Four main statements: 
 Statement of Operations (Income Statement) 
 Statement of Financial Position (Balance Sheet) 
 Statement of Change in Net Debt 
 Statement of Cash Flow  

 



 Slide 4 

Statement of Operations 

Revenues              $2,058M 
 

Expenses: 
 Operations 
 (including Amortization) 
Total Expenses     1,766M 
 

Annual Surplus           292M 
 

Accumulated Surplus,  
beginning of year     4,369M 
 

Accumulated Surplus,  
end of year              $4,661M 

Audit Committee / June 12, 2014 
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Accumulated Surplus 

 Amount that all assets exceed liabilities 

 Includes financial and non-financial assets 

 Indication of physical and financial resources 
available to provide future services 

 2013 accumulated surplus of $4.66B 

Audit Committee / June 12, 2014 

Increased $292M primarily due to investment in tangible capital assets 
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Statement of Financial Position 

Assets: 
  Financial Assets    $2,893M 
Liabilities:      4,257M 
Net Debt    (1,364M)  
Non-Financial Assets: 
  Prepaid Expenses, Inventory           14M 
  Tangible Capital Assets    6,011M 
 

  Accumulated Surplus  $4,661M 
   

Audit Committee / June 12, 2014 
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Tangible Capital Assets By Department 

Sewer
$2B
33%

Roads
$1.2B
20%

Water
$1.3B
22%

Transit
$0.7B
12%

Housing York 
$0.2B

3%

Other
$0.6B
10%

NET BOOK VALUE
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2013

Total: 
$6.0 Billion 

Audit Committee / June 12, 2014 
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Net Debt 

 Difference between financial assets and 
liabilities 

 Indication of future revenues required to pay 
for past investments 

 2013 Net Debt - $1.36B 

 Ratio of total debt to total assets remains 
favourable at 32% 

Audit Committee / June 12, 2014 

Net debt increased to $326M due to investment in tangible capital assets 
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Statement of Cash Flow 

 Shows how much cash flowed in and out of 
the Region 

 Indication of how the Region financed the 
services it provided 

 Net decrease in cash & cash equivalents of 
$115M 

 
 

Audit Committee / June 12, 2014 



 Slide 10 

GFOA Award for Financial Reporting 
2012 

Audit Committee / June 12, 2014 
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Executive summary 

Overview 

The purpose1 of this Audit Findings Report is to assist you, as a member of the audit committee, in 
your review of the results of our audit of the consolidated financial statements (hereinafter “financial 
statements”) of The Regional Municipality of York as at and for the year ended December 31, 2013.   

We appreciate the assistance of management and staff in conducting our audit. We hope this audit 
findings report is of assistance to you for the purpose above, and we look forward to discussing our 
findings and answering your questions. 

Status 

As of the date of this report, we have completed the audit of the financial statements and received 
evidence of approval of the consolidated financial statements from the Commissioner of Finance and 
Regional Treasurer (individual delegated authority to approve the financial statements). 

Our audit report is dated the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements by the 
Commissioner of Finance and Regional Treasurer, April 28, 2014.   

1	 This Audit Findings Report should not be used for any other purpose or by anyone other than the audit committee. KPMG 

shall have no responsibility or liability for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as this Audit Findings 

Report has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, and should not be used by, any third party or for any other 

purpose. 

Audit findings report to the audit committee 	 P a g e  | 2 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  
  

 

 
 

Significant audit, accounting and reporting matters
 

Included in this report are significant matters we have highlighted for discussion at the upcoming 
audit committee meeting. We look forward to discussing these matters and our findings with you. 

Changes from the Audit Plan 

 There have been no changes from the Audit Planning Report previously presented to you. 

Matters related to management’s judgment and estimates 

We have not noted any significant matters related to management’s judgment and estimates that 
we would like to bring to your attention. 

Other matters 

We have highlighted below other significant matters that we would like to bring to your attention:  

Contingent liabilities 

 The CPA Handbook PS3300 Contingent Liabilities requires that the Region recognize a liability 
when “…it is likely that a future event will confirm that a liability has been incurred at the date 
of the financial statements; and the amount can be reasonably estimated.”  

 At any point in time, the Region is subject to a number of matters which could potentially result 
in the determination of a contingent liability as defined above, including, but not limited to 
matters such as legal claims,  contract settlement accruals etc. 

KPMG comments regarding effect on the audit 

 KPMG has reviewed the Region’s assessments of contingent liabilities and the process 
employed to develop and record the related estimated liabilities.  Where applicable, KPMG met 
with the individuals responsible for the process and is satisfied that the methodology used is 
rational, consistent with the approach taken in prior years and has been appropriately reviewed. 

 As these items are resolved, it is possible that the final amounts recorded for these liabilities 
may change, however the amounts currently recorded represent management’s best estimates 
of exposure given the information presently available. 

Misstatements 

 None 
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Accounting Treatment with Housing York inc. (“HYI”) 

 HYI owns several building under the Affordable Housing Program (“AHP”).  

 In prior years, the Housing York Inc. recorded the amortization expense for these buildings 
based on the terms of the mortgages secured to finance such assets and the annual charges of 
the mortgage as the amortization expense. This is in compliance with the Contribution 
Agreement between Housing York inc. and the Region and Section 80(2) of the Housing 
Services Act, 2011 (the “Act”). This treatment resulted in non-cash deficiency of revenue over 
expenditures and ultimately a deficit, which was disallowed under AHP rules. 

 In 2012, the Contribution Agreement is amended to allow for the cessation of amortization on 
AHP buildings by HYI. The amendment was applied in 2012 and future years. 

KPMG comments regarding effect on the audit 

 Per discussion with the Region, they have agreed that starting from 2012 and onwards, the 
amortization should not be recorded on Housing York Inc audited financial statement, but the 
amortization will continue to be recorded on the Region’s consolidated audited financial 
statement. 

 KPMG perform reasonability test to ensure that amortization expense on these HYI buildings 
are adequately recorded on the Region’s book.  

 There is no impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

Misstatements 

 None 
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Significant qualitative aspects of accounting policies 
and practices 

Our professional standards require that we communicate our views regarding the matters below, 
which represent judgments about significant qualitative aspects of accounting policies and practices. 
Judgments about quality cannot be measured solely against standards or objective criteria. These 
judgments are inherently those of the individual making the assessment: the engagement partner. 
However, although judgments about quality are those of the engagement partner, the views 
discussed below are not contrary to positions KPMG has taken. 

The following are the matters we plan to discuss with you: 

Significant 
accounting policies 

 Significant accounting policies or practices are disclosed in Note 1 
to the financial statements. 

 The following new significant accounting policies or practices were 
selected and applied during the year. they are disclosed in Note 1 
to the financial statements: 

o government transfers 

o tax revenues 

Critical accounting 
estimates 

 There were no significant accounting estimates and assumptions 
other than depreciation of tangible capital assets, certain valuations 
related to tangible capital assets, accruals/expenses relating to land 
expropriation claims and fees, and certain accruals and obligations 
related to employee benefits. 

Critical disclosures 
and financial 
statement 
presentation 

 The financial statements include disclosures and presentation 
requirements under the relevant financial reporting framework. 
Misstatements, including omissions, if any, related to disclosure or 
presentation items are in the management representation letter 
included in the Appendices. 

  Significant disclosures include related party transactions. 
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Here are other significant risks and results: 

Fraud and non-
compliance with 
laws and regulations 

 We did not identify: 
 any fraud or suspected fraud that may exist involving 

management, employees who have significant roles in 
internal control, or others where the fraud results in a material 
misstatement in the annual financial statements 

 any matters related to fraud that are, in our judgment, 
relevant to your responsibilities 

 any identified non-compliance with laws or regulations or 
suspected non-compliance, other than when the identified or 
suspected non-compliance is clearly inconsequential. 

Significant unusual 
transactions 

 We did not identify any significant unusual transactions. 

Modifications to the 
audit plan 

 We conducted our audit in accordance with our audit plan. 

Related parties and 
related party 
transactions 

 We did not identify any related party transactions outside the 
normal course of business that involve significant judgments made 
by Management concerning measurement and/or disclosure. 
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Misstatements 

Identification of misstatements 

No misstatements were identified during the audit. 
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Control deficiencies 

Background and professional standards 

As your auditors, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial 
reporting (ICFR) relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control].  

Our understanding of ICFR was for the limited purpose described above and was not designed to 
identify all control deficiencies that might be significant deficiencies and therefore, there can be no 
assurance that all significant deficiencies and other control deficiencies have been identified. Our 
awareness of control deficiencies varies with each audit and is influenced by the nature, timing, and 
extent of audit procedures performed, as well as other factors. 

Identification 

We did not identify any control deficiencies that we determined to be significant deficiencies in ICFR. 

However, based on our audit we do have a number of performance improvement observations, as 
follows: 

Description of performance 
improvement observations 

Potential effect and 
Recommendation 

Management comments/ Status 
Update 

Nothing identified in current year 

Prior year process improvement points and update: 

Deferred revenue - In prior year, 
KPMG noted through observation, 
some items on the deferred 
revenue accounts have been 
carried forward since 2006, such 
as the $6.8M for the Best Start 
Program. As of year-end audit 
date, the full revenue regarding to 
the specific deferred revenue has 
not been recognized yet. KPMG 
noted that the deferred revenue 
could be out-to-date. 

KPMG concluded that this 
may indicate a need to 
monitor the deferred 
revenue closely to ensure 
that the deferred revenue 
would be recognized in a 
timely manner. 

This issue was not noted in the 
performance of the  current year 
audit and the point is considered 
closed. 
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Appendices 

Independence letter 

Management representation letter 

Current developments 

Thought Leadership 
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Independence letter 


KPMG LLP Telephone (416) 228-7000 
Chartered Accountants Fax (416) 224-4671 
Yonge Corporate Centre www.kpmg.ca 
4100 Yonge Street Suite 200 
Toronto ON M2P 2H3 
Canada 

Members of the Audit Committee 
The Regional Municipality of York 
17250 Yonge Street,  
Newmarket, Ontario, L3Y 6Z1 

April 28, 2014 

Dear Members of the Audit Committee, 

Professional standards specify that we communicate to you in writing all relationships between the 
Regional Municipality of York (the “Region”) (and its related entities) and our firm, that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. 

In determining which relationships to report, we consider relevant rules and related interpretations 
prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario and any applicable legislation or 
regulation, covering such matters as: 

a) provision of services in addition to the audit engagement 

b) other relationships such as: 

- holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in a client 

- holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert 
significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client 

- personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired 
partners, either directly or indirectly, with a client 

- economic dependence on a client 

We have prepared the following comments to facilitate our discussion with you regarding 
independence matters arising since the date of our last letter dated June 9, 2013. 

PROVISION OF SERVICES 

The following summarizes the professional services rendered by us to the Region (and its related 
entities) up to the date of this letter: 
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Description of Professional Services 

-

-

-

-

Audit of the 2013 consolidated financial statements of the Regional Municipality of 
York. 

Audit of 2013 financial statements of The Regional Municipality of York Sinking 
Funds, The Regional Municipality of York Residents’ Trust Funds, York Regional 
Police Appreciation Dinner, and the Federal Gas Tax Funds Program. 

Advisory assistance in the procurement of a contractor for VIVANEXT 

Advisory assistance in acting as fairness monitor of the process to procure an 
operator for VIVA after the current contract expires and to compare costs among 
transit systems  

Professional standards require that we communicate the related safeguards that have been applied to 
eliminate identified threats to independence or to reduce them to an acceptable level. Although we 
have policies and procedures to ensure that we did not provide any prohibited services and to ensure 
that we have not audited our own work, we have applied the following safeguards regarding the 
threats to independence listed above: 

	 We did not assume the role of management by instituting policies and procedures to prohibit us 
from making management decisions or assuming responsibility for such decisions 

	 We obtained pre-approval of non-audit services and during this pre-approval process we 
discussed the nature of the engagement, extent of fees charged, and other independence issues 
related to the services 

	 We obtained management’s acknowledgement of responsibility for the results of the work 
performed by us regarding non-audit services and we have not made any management decisions 
or assumed responsibility for such decisions 

OTHER RELATIONSHIPS 

We are not aware of any other relationships between our firm and the Region (and its related entities) 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence during the period from January 1, 2013 
to April 28, 2014. 

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE 

We confirm that we are independent with respect to the Region (and its related entities) within the 
meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct/Code of Ethics of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Ontario as of the date of this letter. 

OTHER MATTERS 

This letter is confidential and intended solely for use by those with oversight responsibility for the 
financial reporting process in carrying out and discharging its responsibilities and should not be used 
for any other purposes. 
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KPMG shall have no responsibility for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as 
this letter has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, and should not be used by, any third 
party or for any other purpose. 

Yours very truly, 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 
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Management representation letter 

The Management representation letter was received on April 29, 2014. 

Current Developments 

Upcoming Indirect Tax Changes 

Indirect taxes in Canada continue to evolve, bringing additional compliance issues and increasing the 
risks of over or under paying taxes. A number of major changes during 2013 that have increased the 
tax risk of not-for profit organizations include:  

 Quebec’s recent harmonization of the QST rules with the GST rules and rate change on January 
1, 2013 

 British Columbia’s transition back to GST and PST from HST on April 1, 2013 
 Prince Edward Island’s new HST on April 1, 2013 
 Canada Revenue Agency’s increased enforcement regime 

In particular the Canada Revenue Agency has increased its audit activity over the past year and has a 
stated intent to focus on the MUSH, NPO and charitable sectors in coming years. Canada Revenue 
Agency audits have raised a significant number of issues. For example, we have encountered issues 
in the following circumstances: 

 Claiming ITCs where grants and subsidies are received in relation to the activity 

 Charging and collecting GST/HST in a shared cost or related party environment 

 CRA auditors failing to audit to net tax and not granting applicable rebates and/or ITCs 

 Denying ITCs and/or rebates where satisfactory documentation is not present 

 Unreasonable projections when using sampling methodologies for audit purposes 

 Denying methodologies for allocating GST/HST paid between taxable and exempt activities for 
purposes of claiming ITCs and/or rebates 

In addition, CRA has recently announced its intention to enforce the requirement that public service 
bodies claim public service body rebates of GST/HST paid or payable in the rebate claim period in 
which the GST/HST was paid or payable, rather than including an amount in a subsequent claim 
period. Public service bodies include: 

 Municipalities 

 Universities and public colleges 

 Schools 

 Hospitals 

 Charities 

 Public institutions 

 Qualifying non-profit organizations (i.e., at least 40% of revenues from government funding) 
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KPMG encourages all charities and non-profit organizations to review their operations with respect to 
the issues discussed above. KPMG would be pleased to assist with any such review. 

Managing Business Risk Related to Information Technology 

Information technology and information systems are widely accepted as being key enablers of the 
business of most enterprises in the world today.  With the ever increasing and changing profile of IT, 
Board Members need to be aware of and understand those things that are keeping their CIOs awake 
at night.     

The key areas of focus and concern of CIO’s or Director’s of IT include the following: 

 Managing Complex Projects: These often involve multiple stakeholders, suppliers and 
technologies that need active oversight and escalation of issues and risks. 

 Overseeing Delivery Partners: The increasing reliance on others to deliver services to IT either 
through outsourcing or shared services arrangements. 

	 Securing the Enterprise against threats, including Cyber attacks: Access to the technology and 
information assets requires active and dynamic approaches to keep pace with intruders. 
Security is broader than just securing information systems; it encompasses personnel, business 
continuity, facilities and supply.  

	 Emerging Technologies: Impact on operations, and on risk. 

Cyber Security, Is your organization at risk? 

Cyber attacks are an inevitable part of life today, and the financial and reputational costs of not being 
prepared against such attacks are significant. Cyber attacks are being launched against all forms of 
valuable information including both financial and non financial data sources. Estimates suggest the 
global financial impact of cybercrime is US$114 billion; companies are thought to bear almost 80% of 
those costs. The nature of these attacks and the perpetrators behind them are always changing. 
Hacktivists, organized criminals, competitors, and even rogue governments are mounting attacks 
with a high level of sophistication and persistence. These perpetrators have different motives, 
however are common in that they are looking to either disrupt or better themselves by stealing 
another entities data.  

Patching servers and installing intrusion detection systems is no longer enough to protect your 
critical assets and business processes. Cyber Security has never been solely about IT; it has always 
been a business issue first.  To survive and prosper requires a business-wide understanding of the 
threats, safeguards, and responses involved. Key elements to consider include: 

 Preparing your people, processes, infrastructure and technology to resist an attack
 
 Detecting the attack and initiating your response
 
 Containing and investigating the attack 

 Recovering from an attack and resuming business operations 

 Reporting on and improving security 


Non-profit organizations should begin to review their organization and consider Cyber Risks. Key data 
that may be identified includes key research data; client or member data etc.  
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Thought Leadership 

KPMG’s Not-for-Profit Practice – 2013 Year in Review 

KPMG's Not-for-Profit practice proudly provided programs, webinars, publications and 
communications to Not-for-Profits and Charities. Below is a quick reference list for your convenience. 

Program 

 Community Shift 
Community Shift is an exclusive development program and network for C-Ievel leaders of 
Canadian charities and Not-for-Profit Organizations (NPOs), founded by KPMG Enterprise™ and 
the Richard Ivey School of Business. A rigorous annual five-day developmental program for 
Canada's leaders of charities and Not-for-Profits, Community Shift has changed the way 
participants look at their operations and provides a catalyst for change. 

Publications and Communications 

 Public Service Transformed: Harnessing the Power of Behavioural Insights 
The report explores the potential and use of behavioural insights in modernizing the public 
service cultural transformation and provides actionable recommendations designed to encourage 
the four positive work behaviours (collaboration, innovation, transparency and a focus on results) 
that will help the public services sector adapt to changing conditions, encourage culture change 
and produce the kinds of outcomes and transformation that governments are demanding. 

 Future State 2030 
This report is part of a series that explores how governments must respond to the global 
megatrends (Demographics, Rise of the Individual, Enabling technology, Economic 
interconnectedness, Public debt, Economic power shift, Climate change, Resource stress, and 
Urbanization) driving change into 2030. 
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 The Integration Imperative: reshaping the delivery of human and social services 
The report provides the results of a global survey of government and thought leaders to review 
active integration schemes in the human and social services sector across 22 jurisdictions from 
around the world. It examines the features of integration initiatives and identifies where the 
integration agenda is heading, including the key trends, the lessons learned, and the implications 
of these trends for governments, clients, and providers from the private and not-for-profit 
sectors. 

 Contaminated Sites – Issues and Implementation Action Plan for PS 3260 
This report addresses the Public Sector Accounting Board’s accounting standard on Liability for 
Contaminated Sites (Section PS3260) which will affect all entities reporting under the Public 
Sector Accounting (PSA) standards. The report discusses why contaminated sites are an issue, 
provides a technical overview, explores liability measurement, and outlines an implementation 
action plan. 

*Reprinted with permission of the Financial Management Institute of Canada (fmi*igf) 
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	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
	To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of The Regional Municipality of York 
	We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Regional Municipality of York, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2013, the statements of operations and accumulated surplus, change in net debt, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
	Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
	Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
	Auditors' Responsibility 
	Our responsibility is to express an op1mon on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
	An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
	We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
	Opinion 
	In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The Regional Municipality of York as at December 31, 2013, the results of its operations and accumulated surplus, change in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 
	J/f'#f~ L£P 
	Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 
	April 28, 2014 Toronto, Canada 
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	THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK Consolidated Statement of Financial Position As at December 31, 2013 
	2013 2012 
	$ $ 
	ASSETS Financial Assets Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 382,744,977 497,960,655 Accounts receivable (Note 4) 178,246,163 180,335,000 Investments (Note 3) 2,114,194,067 1 ,768,091 ,474 Debt amounts recoverable from Area municipalities (Notes 5 and 9a) 218,121,565 226,655,694 Total 
	2,893,306, 772 2,673,042,823 

	LIABILITIES Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 647,014,261 526,973,246 Employee benefit obligations (Note 7) 134,197,551 123,832,297 Deferred revenue (Note 6) 220,500,698 122,477,227 Gross long-term liabilities (Note 5) 2,508,944,941 2,269,715,256 Retirement and sinking fund (Note 5) 360,149,002 237,363,447 Deferred revenue-obligatory reserve funds (Note 6) 386,770,613 430,634,789 
	4,257,577,066 3, 71 0,996,262 

	Net Debt (1,364,270,294) (I ,037,953,439) 
	Non-Financial Assets Tangible capital assets (Note 14) 6,010,907,965 5,397,301 ,685 Inventory 2,757,050 2,731 ' 121 Prepaid expenses 11,590930 6,947,504 Accumulated Surplus (Note 12) 
	2
	4,660,985,651 4,369,026,871 

	The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese Consolidated Financtal Statements. 
	THE REGIONALMUNICIPALI1Y OF YORK 
	Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus For the year ended December 31, 2013 
	Budget 
	Budget 
	Budget 
	2013 
	2012 

	$ 
	$ 
	$ 
	$ 

	Revenues 
	Revenues 

	Net taxation/user charges 
	Net taxation/user charges 
	I,087,458,000 
	1,089,936,162 
	I,045,033,613 

	Transfer payrrents (Note 15) 
	Transfer payrrents (Note 15) 
	493,480,151 
	495,374,989 
	451,832,095 

	~veloprrent contributions 
	~veloprrent contributions 
	260,373,000 
	221,157,590 
	378,684,812 

	Fees and services 
	Fees and services 
	149, 155,276 
	130,161,510 
	118,252,150 

	Interest 
	Interest 
	32,860,377 
	39,469,873 

	Oher 
	Oher 
	55,431,080 
	88,271,050 
	44,676,328 

	Total Revenues 
	Total Revenues 
	2,045,897,507 
	2,057,761,678 
	2,077,948,871 

	Expenses 
	Expenses 

	General govemrrent 
	General govemrrent 
	117,209,153 
	117,316,399 
	112,352,166 

	Protection to persons and property 
	Protection to persons and property 
	297,319,335 
	298,548,297 
	272,853,444 

	Transportation services 
	Transportation services 
	550,850,808 
	541,096,731 
	482, 142,340 

	Environmental services 
	Environmental services 
	388,024,297 
	384,248,619 
	328,016,511 

	Health and errergcncy services 
	Health and errergcncy services 
	131 ,039,012 
	119,475,823 
	110,466,375 

	Corrmmity services 
	Corrmmity services 
	211,263,012 
	205,829,811 
	199,011,494 

	Social housing 
	Social housing 
	95,212,850 
	91,438,603 
	82,318,431 

	Planning and developrrent services 
	Planning and developrrent services 
	7,685,670 
	7,848,615 
	7,450,525 

	Total Expenses 
	Total Expenses 
	1,798,604,137 
	1,765,802,898 
	1,594,611 ,286 

	Annual Surplus 
	Annual Surplus 
	291,958,780 
	483,337,585 

	Accwnulated Surplus, BeginningofYear 
	Accwnulated Surplus, BeginningofYear 
	4,369,026,871 
	3,885,689,286 

	Accumulated Surplus, End of Year 
	Accumulated Surplus, End of Year 
	4,660,985,651 
	4,369,026,871 


	1HEREGI~MUNIOPALilYOF YORK Consolidated Statenmt of 01ange in Net Debt For the yta" ended Ihmlber 31, 2013 
	Budget 2013 
	2012 
	$ $ $ 
	Amualsmplm 247,293,370 291,958,780 483.337,585 
	Annrtization oftangible capital assets 151,133,564 168,019,058 152, 111,353 Proceeds on dispa>al oftangible capital assets 817,393 727,3cy;) Cbange in inventory (25,929) (765,145) Cbange in prepaid expenses (4,643,426) 5,245,401 Loos on sale oftangible capital assets 2,576,192 3,018,375 Acquisition oftangible capital assets (I, 181,389,000) (785,018,923) (676,607,481) 
	Increase in net debt (782,962,<XJ6) (326,316,855) (32,932,513) 
	~debt, Beginning of)'ffif Net debt, Fnd ofyear 
	(I ,037,953,439) (1,037,953,439) (1,005,020,926) 
	(1,820,915,505) (1,364,270,294) (I,037,953,439) 

	The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements 

	THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
	THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
	For the year ended December 31, 201 3 
	Operating 
	Operating 
	Annual surplus 
	Items not involving cash: 
	Amortization 
	Loss on sale oftangible capital assets 
	Changes in non-cash assets and liabilities: 
	Accounts receivable 
	Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
	Employee benefit obligations 
	Deferred revenue 
	Deferred revenue-obligatory reserve funds 
	Inventory 
	Prepaid expenses 
	Net change in cash and cash equivalents from operations 

	Capital 
	Capital 
	Acquisition oftangible capital assets 
	Proceeds on disposal oftangible capital assets 
	Net change in cash and cash equivalents from capital 

	Investing 
	Investing 
	Net change in investments 

	Financing 
	Financing 
	Long-tenn debt issued Long-tenn debt repaid Interest earned on own sinking funds Net change in cash and cash equivalents from financing 
	Net change in cash and cash equivalents 
	Opening cash and cash equivalents 
	Closing cash and cash equivalents 
	2013 $ 291,958,780 168,019,058 2,576,192 2,088,837 120,041,015 10,365,254 98,023,471 (43,864,176) (25,929) (4,643,426) 644,539,076 (785,0 18, 923) 817,393 (784,201,530) (346,1 02,593) 458,209,840 (79,450,635) (8,209,836} 370,549,369 (115,215,678) 497,960,655 382,744,977 
	2013 $ 291,958,780 168,019,058 2,576,192 2,088,837 120,041,015 10,365,254 98,023,471 (43,864,176) (25,929) (4,643,426) 644,539,076 (785,0 18, 923) 817,393 (784,201,530) (346,1 02,593) 458,209,840 (79,450,635) (8,209,836} 370,549,369 (115,215,678) 497,960,655 382,744,977 
	2013 $ 291,958,780 168,019,058 2,576,192 2,088,837 120,041,015 10,365,254 98,023,471 (43,864,176) (25,929) (4,643,426) 644,539,076 (785,0 18, 923) 817,393 (784,201,530) (346,1 02,593) 458,209,840 (79,450,635) (8,209,836} 370,549,369 (115,215,678) 497,960,655 382,744,977 
	2012 s 483,337,585 152,111 ,353 3,018,375 39,579,980 92,968,942 10,789,156 33,064,999 89,973,805 (765,145) 5,245,401 909,324,451 (676,607,481) 727,399 ( 675,880,082) ( 4 78,677,631) 405,867,822 (81,621 ,658) (5,867,823) 318,378,341 73,145,079 424,815,576 497,960,655 

	O.t 
	O.t 
	O.t 
	10 I-I P. 7 



	The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of these Consolidated Fmancial Statements. 
	December 31, 2013 
	The Corporation ofthe Regional Municipality of York (the "Region") was incorporated as a municipality in 1971 by the Province of Ontario. The area municipalities within the regional boundaries include the towns of Aurora, East Gwillimbury, Georgina, Newmarket, Richmond Hill, Whitchurch-Stouffville, the Township of King, the City of Markham and the City ofVaughan. 
	l. .ACCOUNTING P OLICIES 
	The consolidated fmancial statements of the Regional Municipality of York are the representations of management prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for local governments established by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Chartered Professional Accountants Canada (CPA Canada). 
	The focus of PSAB financial statements is on the financial position of the Region and the changes thereto. The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position reports the financial assets and liabilities, and the non financial assets and liabilities of the Region. Financial assets are those assets which could provide resources to discharge existing liabilities or finance future operations. Accumulated surplus represents the amount by which all assets exceed all liabilities. An accumulated surplus indicates tha
	a) .Basis of Consolidation 
	a) .Basis of Consolidation 
	i) .These consolidated fmancial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in the Operating Fund ofall entities which are accountable to and controlled by the Region. They include the activities of all conunittees of Council, York Region Police Services Board, Housing York Inc. and York Region Rapid Transit Corporation (Rapidco). Inter-unit balances and transactions are eliminated from the consolidated financial statements. 
	ii) .The financial activities of the sinking fund are disclosed separately in the sinking fund financial statements. 
	iii) .Funds held in trust by the Region for the residents of Newmarket Health Centre and Maple Health Centre and their related operations are not included in the consolidated financial statements. The financial activity and position of the trust funds and donations received on behalf of the Centres are reported separately in the Residents' Trust Funds and Donation Account Statement of Financial Position, and Statement ofFinancial Activities. 

	b) .Basis of Accounting 
	b) .Basis of Accounting 
	i) .FuU Accrual Basis of Accounting The consolidated financial statements arc prepared using the full accrual basis of accounting. The accrual bas1s ofaccounting records revenue as it is earned and measurable Expenses are recognized as they are mcurred and measurable based upon receipt of goods or sen ices and or the creation of a legal obligation to pay. 
	The annual cost of owning and using a capital asset (estimated amortization) is deducted from annual results. That is, a part of the cost of the asset is recognized in annual results in each of the periods of its useful life. 
	ii) .Cash and Casb Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include short-term highly liquid investments with a term to maturity of 120 days or less after year end. 
	ill) .Deferred Revenue-General Funds received for specific purposes are accounted for as deferred revenue until the Region d1schargcs the obligation wh1ch led to the receipt of the funds. 
	0-1 14 1-1 .p X 
	iv) .Deferred Revenue-Obligatory Reserve Funds Development Charges, collected under the authority of Sections 33 to 35 of the Development Charges Act 1997, are reported as Deferred Revenue in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position in accordance with the recommendations of PSAB. Amounts applied to qualifying capital projects are recorded as revenues in the fiscal period in which the funds are expended on qualifying capital projects. 
	The Region receives gas tax revenues under municipal funding agreements for the transfer of the revenues. These funds, by their nature, are restricted in their use and until applied to applicable works are recorded as deferred revenue. Amounts applied to qualifying projects are recorded as revenue in the fiscal period they are expended. 
	v) .Government transfers Government transfers are recognized in the period in which the events giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria have been met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made. They consist of grants and subsidies received for various operating and capital programs. 
	On January I, 2013, the Region adopted Public Sector Accounting Standard PS 3410, Government Transfers. This standard was adopted on a prospective basis from the date of adoption. Under PS 3410, government contributions received or receivable are recognized in revenue once the eligibility criteria, ifany, are met unless they meet the definition ofa liability. 
	There were no adjustments required as a result ofthe adoption ofthis standard. 
	vi) .Investments Investment income earned on surplus current fund and reserve funds (other than development charges) are reported as revenue in the period earned. Investment income on the development charge reserve funds is added to the fund balance and form part ofthe respective deferred revenue balances. 
	Investments are carried at the lower ofcost and amortized cost. Any discount or premium is amortized over the remaining term of the investments. When there has been a loss in value that is other than temporary decline in value, the respective investment is written down to recognize the loss. 
	vii) .Pensions and Employee Benefits The Region accounts for its participation in the Ontario Municipal Employee Retirement System (OMERS), a multi-employer public sector pension fund, as a defined benefit plan. Vacation entitlements are accrued for as entitlements are earned. Sick leave benefits are accrued where they are vested and subject to pay out when an employee leaves the Region's employ. 
	Other post-employment benefits are accrued in accordance with the proJected benefit method prorated on service and management" s best esttmate of salary escalation and retirement ages of employees. Actuarial valuauons, where necessary for accounting purposes, are performed triennially. The discount rate used to determine the accrued benefit obligation was determined by reference to market interest rates at the measurement date on high-quality debt instruments with cash flows that match the timing and amount
	expected penod during which the benefits 

	Where apphcable, the Region has set as1de reserve funds intended to fund these obligations. e1ther in full or m part These reserYe funds were created under muruc1pal by-la\\ and do not meet the defirutton of a plan asset under PSAB 3250 Retirement Benefits. Therefore, for the purpose of these financtal statements, the plans are cons1dered unfunded. 
	04 t4 14 .P. 9 
	December 31, 2013 
	viii) .Segment Disclosure A segment is defined as a distinguishable activity or group of activities of a government for which it is appropriate to separately report financial information to achieve the objectives of the standard. The segment information is provided by financial statement guideline per PSAB 2700. For additional information, see Note 13. 
	Certain allocation methodologies are employed in the preparation of the segmented fmancial information. Net taxation/user charges and other revenues have been allocated to the segment based upon the segments that generate the revenues. Transfer payments have been allocated to the segment based upon the purpose for which the transfers were made. Development contributions received were allocated to the segment for which the contribution was collected. 
	ix) .Budget Figures 
	ix) .Budget Figures 
	Regional Municipality of York's Council completes a review of its operating budget each year. The approved budget for 2013 is included in the budget figures presented in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. The budget as approved by Regional Council includes those expenses which are part of current tax levies and user charges. 
	in$ (000s) 
	Revenues .Approved budgets 2,955,050 .Transfer from other funds (193,335) .Proceeds ofdebt issued for Regional purpose (744,021) .Other units 28,203 .Total revenues 2,045,897 .
	Expenses .Approved budgets 2,955,050 .Transfer to other funds (230,268) .Capital expenses (597,025) .Debt principal repayments (178,019) .Amortization (151, 134) .Othe units 49,169 .Total expenses 1,798,604 .
	Annual surplus .247,293 
	December 31, 2013 
	x) Tangible Capital Assets 
	x) Tangible Capital Assets 
	Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets is amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives in number of 
	years as follows: 
	years as follows: 
	years as follows: 

	Land 
	Land 
	Infmite 

	Land Improvements 
	Land Improvements 
	20 

	Buildings 
	Buildings 
	15-60 

	Leasehold Improvement 
	Leasehold Improvement 
	Lease Term 

	Water and Wastewater-Linear 
	Water and Wastewater-Linear 
	60-100 by materials 

	Water and Wastewater-Discrete facilities 
	Water and Wastewater-Discrete facilities 
	15-60 by asset components 

	Hardware and Software 
	Hardware and Software 
	3-7 

	Equipment and Machinery 
	Equipment and Machinery 
	3-30 

	Vehicles 
	Vehicles 
	3-18 

	Roads (Road surface/Structure) 
	Roads (Road surface/Structure) 
	15/45 

	Bridges (Deck/Understructure) 
	Bridges (Deck/Understructure) 
	25/75 

	Culverts 
	Culverts 
	60 

	Level Crossings 
	Level Crossings 
	40 

	Intersections 
	Intersections 
	15 

	xi) Use of Estimates 
	xi) Use of Estimates 


	Since precise determination of many assets and liabilities is dependent upon future events, the preparation ofperiodic fmancial statements necessarily involves the use ofestimates and approximations. 
	xii) Tax Revenue Property tax revenue is recognized on an accrual basis using the approved tax rates and the anticipated assessment related to the current year. 
	On January I, 2013 the Region adopted Public Sector Accounting Standard PS 3510, Tax Revenue. This standard was adopted on a prospective basis from the date of adoption. Under PS 3510, municipalities recognize property tax revenue using the approved tax rate and the anticipated assessment. The standard requires that tax revenue is reported net of tax concessions. Tax transfers are included as an expense and taxes levied on behalf of others in a flow through arrangement are not reported in the statement of o
	There were no adjustments required as a result of the adoption of this standard. 



	2. COST-SHARED CAPITAL PROJECTS 
	2. COST-SHARED CAPITAL PROJECTS 
	The Regional Municipality of York paid the Region of Peel and the City of Toronto $86.0 million in 20 13 ($97.0 million in 20 12) to cover the Region's portion of capital costs incurred to construct additional water and wastewater infrastructure. While the contributions were made under a cost-sharing arrangement. the Region believes that they possess the risks and rewards of ownership of these assets to the level of their contribution. These costs are recorded in Assets under Construction and are amortized 
	3. INVESTMENTS 
	3. INVESTMENTS 
	Included in cash and cash equivalents are short-term investments of$221,984,994 (20 12 -$198,512.221) with a market value of$221,973,229 (2012-$198,321,353). 
	Long-tem1 investments of $2,114,194.067 (2012-$1,768,091,474) have a market value of $2.111.614,965 (2012-$ 1,8 11 ,049,822). 
	Cash and cash equivalents and long-term investments include $386,770,613 (2012-$430,634,789) of restricted funds as required under legislation to fund obligatory reserve funds. 
	The yields on investments held range from l.l0% to 4.63% (0.91% to 4.88% in 20 12). 
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	4. .ACCOUNTS R ECEIVABLE 
	4. .ACCOUNTS R ECEIVABLE 
	This amount is comprised of the following: 
	2013 2012 
	$ $ Govenunentofe2nada 18,433,455 23,288,262 Govenunent ofOntario 12,524,717 3,932,396 Other Mwlicipalities 72,627,680 81,170,932 Others 
	74,660,311 72,030,757 

	178,246,163 180,422,347 Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 0 87,347 
	178,246,163 180,335,000 


	5. .LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
	5. .LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
	a) .The balance for long-term liabilities reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position is made up of the following items. Interest rates and maturity dates for the debts range from 2% to 8% and from January 2, 2014 to December I, 2051. 
	The total gross amount of the long-term liabilities to be retired by sinking funds is $2,064,851,002 (2012­$1,737,636,551). The amount of the sinlcing funds assets available to retire debt is $360,149,002 (2012­$237,363,447). 
	2013 20 12 $ $ 
	Total long-term liabilities incurred by the Municipality including those incurred on behalf of area municipalities and outstanding at the end ofthe year 2,430,830,433 2,187,287,149 
	Mortgages payable by Housing York Inc. .78,114,508 82.428,107 
	2,508,944, 941 2,269,715,256 
	Retirement and smkmg fund .360,149,002 237,363,447 
	Less: Recoverable from area municipalities .218,121,565 226,655.694 
	Net long-tem1 liablitlles at the end of the year .2,650,972,378 2.280,423.009 
	b) Net long-tenn liabilities are repayable as follows: 
	2014 $184,931,0 15 2015 186,656,320 2016 134,278,898 2017 122,151,074 2018 88,471,716 Thereafter I ,607,218,872 Net sinking fund debt repayable according to actuarial recommendations 327,264,483 $2,650,972,3 78 
	Long-term liabilities are financed through a combination of development charges, water and sewer rates, and tax levy. 


	c) Charges for Net Long-term Liabilities 
	c) Charges for Net Long-term Liabilities 
	Total interest charges for the year for net long-term liabilities which are included in the Consolidated Statement of Operations are $106.567,310 (2012-$93,369,518). 
	6. DEFERRED REVENUE 
	Deferred revenue set aside for specific purposes by legislation, regulation, or agreement as at December 31, 
	composed of: 
	composed of: 
	composed of: 

	Balance at 
	Balance at 
	Inflows 
	Transferred 
	Balance at 

	December 31 , 
	December 31 , 
	out 
	December 31, 

	2012 
	2012 
	20 13 

	TR
	$ 
	$ 
	$ 
	$ 

	Deferred capital grants 
	Deferred capital grants 
	54,844,514 
	397,227,025 
	(257,5 19, 11 9) 
	194,552,420 

	Security deposits and agreements 
	Security deposits and agreements 
	55,970,8 12 
	23,962,03 1 
	(61,692,566) 
	18,240,277 

	Other 
	Other 
	11 ,661 ,901 
	1, 114,548 
	{5,068,448
	~ 
	7,708,001 


	Total deferred revenue-general 
	Total deferred revenue-general 
	Total deferred revenue-general 
	122,477,227 
	422,303,604 
	(324,280, 133) 
	220,500,698 

	Development charges 
	Development charges 
	377,638,788 
	168,080,729 
	(221.157 .590) 
	324.561,927 

	Gas tax 
	Gas tax 
	52,996,001 
	45,010.415 
	(35.797,730) 
	62,208,686 

	Total obligatory reserve funds 
	Total obligatory reserve funds 
	430,634,789 
	213,091,144 
	(256,955,320) 
	386,770,6 13 


	December 31, 2013 
	7. EMPLOYEE BENEFlTS 
	The amounts represent liabilities established for accrual accounting purposes expected to be settled in future periods. In some cases, reserves have been established to fund these amounts. In other cases, the liabilities are to be funded from future years' budgetary allocations. Net increase in the total amount is $10,365,254. 
	2013 2012 $ $ Poot enpo)'1TD1lxrefits (c) 55,62l,M9 :JJ,fb8,627 Vestalsick leave h:refits (a) 25,125,896 25,<ro,048 ~termdisabilityclain"E (e) 22,283,109 20,%3,480 Vocatioo ~yable 17;lS7,fJ38 15,WJ,l71 \Mxi<ploce Safetyard !mJrarreBoord (\\'SIB) (d) ~ 
	11 ,510,971 134,1.97,551 123,&32.297 

	Actuarial valuations: .The following table sets out the extrapolated results for each of the plans as at December 31, 2013. .
	Post 
	employment 
	employment 
	employment 
	Vested sick 
	Long term 
	20 13 total 

	benefits 
	benefits 
	leave benefits 
	disability 
	WS IB 

	s 
	s 
	$ 
	$ 
	$ 
	$ 

	Accrued benetlt ltablllly, 
	Accrued benetlt ltablllly, 

	beginning of year 
	beginning of year 
	50,668,627 
	25,080,048 
	20.963,480 
	11.510,971 
	I08,223,126 

	Current service cost 
	Current service cost 
	3,362.316 
	3,908,917 
	3,530,666 
	3,709,765 
	14,511,664 

	Amortization of (gain) loss 
	Amortization of (gain) loss 
	511,408 
	I ,572,690 
	(626,000) 
	365.299 
	I ,823,397 

	Interest cost 
	Interest cost 
	2,490,092 
	I ,972,064 
	718,127 
	661,875 
	5,842, 158 

	Benefi t payments and adjustments 
	Benefi t payments and adjustments 
	(1,4 10,794) 
	p.407,823) 
	(2,303,164) 
	~2.338,951) 
	( 13,460, 732) 

	Accrued benefit liability, end of 
	Accrued benefit liability, end of 

	year 
	year 
	55,621,649 
	25,125,896 
	22.283,109 
	13,908,959 
	116,939,613 


	The actuarial valuations ofthe plans were based upon a number ofassumptions about future events, which reflect management's best esttmate. The followmg represents the more significant assumptions made: 
	Post employment Long term 
	and sick leave disability WSIB Expected inflation rate 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% Expected level ofsalary increases 3.00% 3.00% N/A Interest discount rate 4.25% 4.25% 4.75% 
	Total employee benefit obligations amount to $134,197.551 (2012-$123.832.297). 
	December 31, 2013 
	a) .Liability for Vested Sick Leave Benefits .Regional Operations .
	Commencing in 2000, the accumulated sick leave plan was replaced by a Short-term Disability plan for employees in Regional Operations. Under the plan, employees with five or more years of service were given the option of receiving a cash payout of fifty percent of the balance in their sick leave bank as at December 31 , 1999 or deferring payment until termination of employment with the Region. The estimated actuarial value of the liability of the accumulated days for employees who chose the deferral option 
	Police Services 
	Police Services 
	For members hired before July 22, 2013, the sick leave benefit plan provides for an accumulative unused sick leave bank. After five years of service, members are entitled to a cash payment of one-half of the sick bank balance to a maximum of six months salary when they leave the municipality's employ. Members were provided with an election to opt for a cash settlement of one-half of their sick banks hours up to a maximum of six months' salary, in one of three election windows on September I, 2013, September
	The actuarial liability for the accumulated days to the extent that they have vested and could be taken in cash by an employee on termination amounted to $24,174,421 (2012 -$23,976,672). A reserve was established to provide for a portion of the Police Services past service liability and the balance at the end of the year is $11,698,751 (2012-$18,514,677) and is included in accumulated surplus in the Consolidated Statement ofFinancial Position. 
	According to an independent actuarial valuation report dated February II , 20I 4 the total estimated liability for both regional operations and police services is $25,125,896 (2012-$25,080,048). 
	b) .Pension Agreement The Region contributes to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System (OMERS), a multi­employer plan on behalf of approximately 5,299 members of its staff. The plan is a defined benefit plan and specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based on length of credited service and average earnings. 
	In 2013, employer contribution amounts to $49,954,145 (2012 -$40,928,585) and is included as an expense in the Consolidated Statement ofOperations. Employee contributions also amount to $49,954,145 (20 12 -$40,928,585). 
	The OMERS pension plan has a deficit of $8.6 billion at December 31, 2013 based on actuarial valuation of plan assets. OMERS increased contributions for both employers and employees by 0.9% for 2013. If actuarial surpluses are not available to offset the existing deficit and subsidize future contributions, additional increases in the contributions may be required. 
	c) .Post Employment Benefits Employees who retire under the OMERS pension plan at age fifty or greater with a minimum of twenty years of service with the Region, are entitled to continued coverage for extended health and dental benefits. Those retirees from age 65 to age 75 are eligible to a health care spending account of$2,000 per year. 
	According to an independent actuarial valuation report dated February 11 , 2014 the total future cost associated with these benefits is $55.621 ,649 (2012 -$50,668,627) and is reported in the Consolidated Statement ofFinancial Position. 
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	d) .Workplace Safety and Insurance Board Under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act, the Region is a self-insured employer (Schedule II) for all ofits employees. 
	According to an independent actuarial valuation dated February 5, 2014 the estimated liability for all claims incurred to December 31, 2013 is $13,908,959 (2012 -$1 1,510,971) and is reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. The unamortized actuarial loss as at December 31, 2013 is $1,825,618 (2012-$2,190,917). 
	e) .Long-Term Disability Self Funding Arrangement In October 2002, the Region adopted a self-insured arrangement for its long-term disability benefit (LTD). Under this arrangement, the Region funds its own claims through a segregated reserve and contracts with an insurance carrier to adjudicate and administer all claims on an Administrative Services Only (ASO) basis. According to an independent actuarial valuation dated February 5, 20 14 the estimated liability for claims incurred is $22,283,109 (2012 -$20,

	8. .CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMITMENTS 
	8. .CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMITMENTS 
	a) .York-Toronto Water Supply Agreements Under the tem1s of agreements with the City of Toronto, the Region is entitled to purchase water at rates established every year. Payments in respect of these agreements amounted to $20,186,688 (2012 ­$21 ,654,880). Payments under these agreements are financed by area municipalities based on water consumption. 
	e) .York-Peel Water Supply Agreement In 200 I, the Region entered into an inter-regional water serv1cmg agreement with the Regional Municipality of Peel. Under the terms of the agreement, the Region is entitled to purchase water from Peel at a negotiated rate. York Region began purchasing water from the Region of Peel in late 2005. The agreement provides for a buy-in payment of $52.4 million, payable in three equal instalments of $17.46 million. The final instalment was paid in 2012. York Region is required
	c) .Operating Leases Under the terms of various operating lease agreements, future minimum payments for the next 5 years are approximately as follows: 
	$ 
	2014 .8,444,000 
	2015 .6,904,000 
	2016 .5,104,000 
	2017 .4,094,000 
	2018 .3,953,000 
	December 31, 2013 
	d) .York Rapid Transit Plan In 2002, the Region entered into a public-private partnership with York Consortium 2002 to implement the York Rapid Transit Plan (YRTP). The YRTP was developed from the Region's Transportation Master Plan, which identified the need to implement a rapid network that would reduce the rate of traffic congestion and support economic and residential growth. The future works for the YRTP has been rebranded as VI VAN ext and includes the construction of the Yonge and Spadina Subway exte
	e) .Toronto-York Subway Extension Project In 2007, the Region signed an agreement with the City of Toronto and the Toronto Transit Commission to design and construct an extension of the Spadina subway line that will extend from Downsview Station in northwest Toronto into York Region. The subway extension is a part of the Region's Transportation Master Plan which will support economic and residential growth. 
	The project cost is estimated to be $2.6 billion over 9 years and will be funded by contributions from the Federal Government, the Province of Ontario, the City of Toronto and York Region. The Region's estimated contribution is $351 million of which $54.5 million has been paid to the project this year. 
	f) .York Region Hospitals Capital Funding In 2009, Regional Council approved a memorandum of understanding (MOU) between the Region and York regional hospitals which provides direction for capital funding of the four regional hospitals from 2009 to 203 1. Under the MOU, the Region provides funding for approved projects and their associated approved eligible costs. Total capital distributions to Markham Stouffville Hospital, Southlake Regional Health Centre, Vaughan Health Can1pus of Care and Mackenzie Healt

	9. .CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
	9. .CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
	a) .Long-term Liabilities The Region is contingently liable for long-term liabilities for which the responsibility for the payment of principal and interest is recoverable from other municipalities. 
	b) .Public Liability Insurance The Region's public liability insurance limits arc set at $50,000,000. Environmental impairment liability is fully self-insured by the Region. The Region has maintained the same self-insured retention (SIR) levels over the past few years. Most policies have an SIR of$ 100,000 per occurrence wtth the exception of Crime which has an SIR of$0 and Property and Boiler which have each have an SIR of$50,000 per occurrence. 
	The Region eshmates that the liability as at December 3 1, 2013 for all outstanding public liability claims ts, $4,650,783 (2012 -$5,351,214). The total reserve available for public liability and environmental impairment is $19.019,051 (2012-$23,710.779). 
	c) .Contingencies The Region, in the course of its operations. is subject to claims. lawsuits and other contingencies. Accruals have been made 111 specific instances where it 1s probable that liabilities will be mcurred and where such liabilities can be reasonably estimated. Although it 1s possible that liabilities may arise in other instances for which no accruals have been made. the RegiOn does not believe that such an outcome will significantly impair its operations or have a material adverse effect on i
	December 31, 2013 
	10. .PROVINCIAL O FFENCES ADMINISTRATION 
	10. .PROVINCIAL O FFENCES ADMINISTRATION 
	The Region administers prosecutions and the collection of related fines and fees under the authority of the Provincial Offences Act ("POA"). The POA is a procedural law for administering and prosecuting provincial offences, including those committed under the llighway Traffic Act, Compulsory Automobile Insurance Act, Trespass to Property Act, Liquor Licence Act, Municipal By-laws and minor federal offences. Offenders may pay their fines at any court office in Ontario, at which time their receipt is recorded
	The gross revenue is comprised primarily of fines levied under Part I, II and lli (including delay penalties) for POA charges. The total revenue for 2013 amounts to $15,664,208 (20 12 -$15,446,897) and the net loss amounts to $1,954,282 (20 12 -$1,926,361 ). Balances arising from operation of the POA offices are consolidated with these financial statements. 

	11. LIMITATION ON PROPERTY TAX INCREASES AND FUNDING FOR B USINESS CLASSES UNDER THE MUNICIPAL A CT, 2001 
	11. LIMITATION ON PROPERTY TAX INCREASES AND FUNDING FOR B USINESS CLASSES UNDER THE MUNICIPAL A CT, 2001 
	The Municipal Act, 200 I (the "Act") has required that municipalities to limit (cap) any annual assessment related property tax increases on the Commercial, Industrial, and Multi-Residential property classes. The Act also enables municipalities to retain assessment related property decreases in order to fund the cost ofcapping. 
	Since 2005, York Region Council has approved the application of all municipal capping options available under section 329.1 of the Act to accelerate movement towards current value assessment (CV A) level taxes for affected properties. A summary ofthese options is presented below: 
	I. .Assessment-related property tax increases are limited to an amount which is the greatest of lO% of the previous year's annualized capped taxes, or 5% ofthe previous year's annualized full CVA taxes. 
	2. .
	2. .
	2. .
	Capped or clawed back properties that are within $250 of their full CV A taxes are moved to the CV A tax level in the current taxation year and are kept there for subsequent taxation years. 

	3. .
	3. .
	Eligible new construction/new-to-class properties are taxed at a minimum of I 00% of their full CV A tax value for the 2009 and subsequent taxation years. 

	4. .
	4. .
	A property that reached its CVA tax level in the previous year is excluded from the capping program in the current and subsequent taxation years. 

	5. .
	5. .
	Properties that were in a capped or clawed back position in the previous year that, as a result of reassessment, would have crossed over in the current year (i.e. move from clawed back to capped, or from capped to clawed back) are kept at the CV A tax level in the current and subsequent taxation years. 


	The Region is also required by the Act to perform a "hankering" role for the local mumcipalities to ensure that they would have neither a surplus nor a shortfall as a result ofthis process. The Region will only transfer funds bet\veen area municipalities as part of the tax related adjustments and does not mcur any direct financial costs to area municipalities. However, if there is a shortfall m the amount of property tax decreases available to fund the cost of capping protection in a particular property cla
	12. 
	12. 
	12. 
	ACCUMULATED SURPLUS .Accumulated surplus consists ofindividual fund surplus and reserves and reserve funds as follows: .

	13. 
	13. 
	SEGMENT DISCLOSURE 


	2013 
	2013 
	2013 
	2012 

	$ 
	$ 
	$ 

	Surplus 
	Surplus 

	-Invested in tangible capital assets 
	-Invested in tangible capital assets 
	3,040,556,854 
	3,242,465,265 

	-Other 
	-Other 
	2126672066 
	{1,811,4962 

	TR
	3206222232920 
	3,240,653,769 

	Reserves 
	Reserves 

	-Equipment/vehicle replacement 
	-Equipment/vehicle replacement 
	55,599,917 
	51,460,918 

	-Working capital 
	-Working capital 
	42,494,163 
	41,819,788 

	-Group benefits 
	-Group benefits 
	2,985,451 
	2,472,905 

	-Vacation pay 
	-Vacation pay 
	857,542 
	833,239 

	-OMERS (Type 3) 
	-OMERS (Type 3) 
	94 604 
	94,604 

	Total Reserves 
	Total Reserves 
	10220312677 
	96,681,454 


	2013 
	2013 
	2013 
	2012 

	$ 
	$ 
	$ 

	Reserve Funds 
	Reserve Funds 

	-Sinking fund 
	-Sinking fund 
	324,607,427 
	0 

	-Roads infrastructure 
	-Roads infrastructure 
	289,475,583 
	125,747,553 

	-Debt reduction 
	-Debt reduction 
	229,624,260 
	0 

	-Social housing development 
	-Social housing development 
	11 1,172,951 
	123,554,836 

	-Facilities rehabilitation and replacement 
	-Facilities rehabilitation and replacement 
	67,567,430 
	194,384,540 

	-Solid waste management 
	-Solid waste management 
	53,059,269 
	51,494,010 

	-Capital reserve fund 
	-Capital reserve fund 
	50,828,766 
	2 19,797,402 

	-Tax stabilization 
	-Tax stabilization 
	47,447,606 
	47,398,636 

	-Regionally owned housing 
	-Regionally owned housing 
	43,126,404 
	12,580,478 

	-Move Ontario 
	-Move Ontario 
	29,205,853 
	29,884,167 

	-Capital reserve-water and sewer 
	-Capital reserve-water and sewer 
	29,101,424 
	(22,427,325) 

	-Long-term disability 
	-Long-term disability 
	28,316,126 
	27,698,158 

	-Roads capital 
	-Roads capital 
	26,640,336 
	57,760, 160 

	-Social assistance 
	-Social assistance 
	26,434,218 
	26,146,128 

	-Hospital financing 
	-Hospital financing 
	21 ,493,947 
	15,692,626 

	-Insurance 
	-Insurance 
	19,019,051 
	23,710,779 

	-Non-profit housing capital 
	-Non-profit housing capital 
	18,369,438 
	12,965,404 

	-Sick leave 
	-Sick leave 
	16,365,229 
	23,437,078 

	-Workers' compensation schedule II 
	-Workers' compensation schedule II 
	16,333,436 
	14,999,490 

	-IT development 
	-IT development 
	11 ,473,202 
	9,959,839 

	-Land bank 
	-Land bank 
	10,000,000 
	0 

	-Fiscal stabilization 
	-Fiscal stabilization 
	8,930,142 
	8,677,065 

	-Transit 
	-Transit 
	8,917,365 
	15,468,003 

	-Innovation 
	-Innovation 
	4,342,063 
	4,219,010 

	-Fuel cost stabilization 
	-Fuel cost stabilization 
	2,187,732 
	1,083,207 

	-Land securement 
	-Land securement 
	2,170,140 
	3,011,580 

	-Seized funds 
	-Seized funds 
	279,866 
	278,297 

	-Alternative community living 
	-Alternative community living 
	229,789 
	213,356 

	-Insurance claims and certificate system 
	-Insurance claims and certificate system 
	11,001 
	10,689 

	-Gas tax 
	-Gas tax 
	0 
	1,595,505 

	-Provincial highways 
	-Provincial highways 
	0 
	1,175,953 

	-Computer software acquisition 
	-Computer software acquisition 
	0 
	1,175,024 

	Total Reserve Funds 
	Total Reserve Funds 
	1,496, 730,054 
	I ,031 ,69 1 ,648 

	Total 
	Total 
	4,660,985,651 
	4,369,026,871 


	The Region is a municipal government which provides a wide range of services to its residents that include .general government, protection to persons and property, transportation, environmental, health and emergency .services, community services, and planning and development services. .
	Gt!neral Government .General government comprises of the Council, the Chair's Office, the Office of the Chief Administrative .Officer, Corporate Services and Finance Departments. These divisions and branches supply administrative and .financial leadership for the Regional Corporation. .
	Protection to persons and property .Protection to persons and property consists of the activities of Police Services Board and York Regional Police. .Their mandate is to ensure the safety ofthe lives and property of citizens; prevent crime from occurring; detect .offenders; and enforce the law. .
	Transportation services .This division operates and delivers regional infrastructure involving roadways, public transit, traffic systems, .and bridges and culverts. .York Region Rapid Transit Corporation's principal activity is the design and delivery of York Region's rapid .transit systems. .
	Environmental services .The department is responsible for water treatment and distribution, wastewater collection and treatment, and .solid waste disposal and diversion. It also delivers infrastructure projects, both for new and expanded assets .and major rehabilitation ofexisting assets. .
	Health and emergency services .It provides a variety of health related programs and services that contribute to healthy communities through .partnerships, promotiOn, prevention, protection and enforcement. Staff members render programs such as land .ambulance service, immumzation, nutrition, mental health and health inspection. .
	Community services .Children's Services plans, manages and coordinates a Region-wide child care services. Long Term Care .operates long-term care facilities for seniors. The Ontario Works and Ontario Disability Support Programs .deliver a range ofprograms providing employment and financial assistance to residents in need. .
	Social housing .Social housing is responsible for administrating social housing providers, the rent supplement programs and .managing a social housing waiting list. .Housing York Inc. 1s a non-profit housing corporation providing affordable rental unus for its residents .
	Planning and development services .This unit provides a long-term comprehensive approach to planning and development processes to ensure the .efficient use of land and community infrastructure. Services include long-range capital planning, development .review, building perm1ts and inspection services. .
	December 31, 2013 
	General 
	General 
	General 
	Protection to 
	Transportation Environmental 
	Health and 

	goverrunent 
	goverrunent 
	persons and 
	servtces 
	services 
	emergency 

	TR
	property 
	services 


	Revenues 
	Revenues 
	Net taxation/user charges Transfer payments Development contributions Fees and services Interest Other 
	879,571,249 -59,837 
	12,645,778 17,552, 174 11 ,653,485 
	12,645,778 17,552, 174 11 ,653,485 
	8,967,738 6,022,846 15,599,465 

	563,779 
	I ,6 15,853 
	-
	207,425,900 28,542,058 64,884,791 7,141,382 9,348,559 
	210,364,9 13 
	16,965,873 77,130,657 184,625,783 254,792 15,187,055 1,027,945 
	I ,327,470 1,240,768 
	26,122,705 
	92 1 ,362,849 
	92 1 ,362,849 
	92 1 ,362,849 
	32,769,68 1 
	3 17,342,690 
	454,593,799 
	79,654,162 

	Expenses 
	Expenses 

	Salaries and benefits 
	Salaries and benefits 
	55,266,042 
	256,910,673 
	53,486,918 
	38,974,959 
	97,021,259 

	Interest payments 
	Interest payments 
	345,962 
	3,179,215 
	10,239,735 
	87,923,785 
	240,783 

	Operating expenses 
	Operating expenses 
	42,248,682 
	26,759,948 
	403,536,44 1 
	191 ,488,368 
	13,628,286 

	Government transfers 
	Government transfers 
	6,692,484 
	7,515,175 
	4,561 ,972 

	Amortization 
	Amortization 
	12,763,229 
	11,698,461 
	73,833,637 
	58,346,332 
	4,023,523 


	117,316,399 298,548,297 541 ,096, 731 384,248,619 119,475,823 .
	Annual Surplus (Deficit) 
	804,046,450 (265,778,616) (223,754,041) 70,345,180 (39,821,661) 





	THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
	THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
	December 31,2013 
	Community 
	Community 
	Community 
	Social 
	Planning and 
	Total 
	Total 

	services 
	services 
	housing 
	development 
	20 13 
	2012 

	TR
	services 


	Revenues 
	Revenues 
	Revenues 

	Net taxation/user charges 
	Net taxation/user charges 
	-
	1,089,936,162 
	1.045,033,613 

	Transfer payments 
	Transfer payments 
	151,962,634 
	32,634,324 
	347,700 
	495,374,989 
	451 ,832,095 

	Development contributions 
	Development contributions 
	282,869 
	1,330,8 10 
	98,432 
	221,157,590 
	378,684,812 

	Fees and services 
	Fees and services 
	1,937,698 
	18,85 1,067 
	27,7 11 
	I30,161,510 
	118,252,150 

	Interest 
	Interest 
	765,860 
	4,268,944 
	32,860,377 
	39,469,873 

	Other 
	Other 
	958,190 
	38,572,258 
	88,271,050 
	44,676,328 

	TR
	155,907,251 
	95,657,403 
	473,843 
	2,057,761,678 
	2,077,948,871 

	Expenses 
	Expenses 

	Salaries and benefits 
	Salaries and benefits 
	65,627.489 
	10,296,907 
	5.934,283 
	583,518,530 
	531,911.982 

	Interest payments 
	Interest payments 
	30,290 
	4,607,540 
	106,567,310 
	93.369,518 

	Operating expenses 
	Operating expenses 
	83,497,581 
	70,416,178 
	1,871,118 
	833,446,602 
	722,683,022 

	Government transfers 
	Government transfers 
	55,481,767 
	74,251,398 
	94,535,41 I 

	Amortization 
	Amortization 
	1,192,684 
	6,117,978 
	43,214 
	168,0 19,058 
	152,111 ,353 

	TR
	205,829,8 11 
	91,438,603 
	7,848,615 
	I,765,802,898 
	1,594,611 ,286 


	Annual Surplus (Deficit) (49,922,560) 4,218,800 (7,374,772) 291,958,780 483,337,585 
	14. T ANGffiLE CAPITAL ASSETS 
	14. T ANGffiLE CAPITAL ASSETS 
	14. T ANGffiLE CAPITAL ASSETS 

	Cost 
	Cost 
	Balance at December 31 2012 
	Additions 
	Dis2osals 
	Balance at December 31 2013 


	Table
	TR
	s 
	$ 
	$ 
	$ 

	Land 
	Land 
	364,695,553 
	19,242,733 
	383,938,286 

	Land improvements 
	Land improvements 
	140,753,436 
	23,118,001 
	(421,156) 
	163,450,281 

	Buildings 
	Buildings 
	1,414,903,027 
	182,579,235 
	(7 ,820,262) 
	I ,589,662,000 

	Equipment and machinery 
	Equipment and machinery 
	452,661 ,3 19 
	I 01,989,335 
	( 6,207 ,977) 
	548,442,677 

	Vehicles 
	Vehicles 
	275,065,969 
	13,474,256 
	(9,839,430) 
	278,700,795 

	Roads infrastructure 
	Roads infrastructure 
	I ,305,171 ,663 
	82,354,910 
	(16,109,738) 
	1,371,416,835 

	Water/sewer infrastruc ture 
	Water/sewer infrastruc ture 
	I ,121,888,684 
	22,664,941 
	1,144,553,625 

	Assets under construction 
	Assets under construction 
	1 ,94 7'1 0 1 ,254 
	339,595,512 
	2,286,696,766 

	Total 
	Total 
	7,022,240,905 
	785,018,923 
	(40,398,563) 
	7,766,861,265 

	TR
	Balance at 
	Balance at 

	TR
	December 31 
	Amortization 
	December 31 

	Accumulated amortization 
	Accumulated amortization 
	2012 
	Disposals 
	ex2enses 
	2013 

	TR
	$ 
	$ 
	$ 
	$ 

	Land 
	Land 
	0 
	0 

	Land improvements 
	Land improvements 
	66,487,420 
	(300,316) 
	6,636,936 
	72,824,040 

	Buildings 
	Buildings 
	442,160,235 
	(7 ,041 ,223) 
	40,961,778 
	476,080,790 

	Equipment and machinery 
	Equipment and machinery 
	251,203,660 
	(6,193,313) 
	44,269,136 
	289,279,483 

	Vehicles 
	Vehicles 
	108,815,737 
	(8,847,115) 
	22,482,785 
	122,451,407 

	Roads infrastructure 
	Roads infrastructure 
	635,750,593 
	(14,623,011) 
	41,859,653 
	662,987,235 

	Water/sewer infrastructure 
	Water/sewer infrastructure 
	120,52 1,575 
	II ,808,770 
	132,330,345 


	Total I ,624,939,220 (37,004,978) 168,0 19,058 I ,755,953,300 
	Land Land improvements Buildings Equipment and machinery Vehicles Roads infrastructure Water sewer infrastructure Assets under construction Total 
	Net book value December 31 2012 
	s 
	364,695,553 74,266,016 972,742,792 201,457,659 166,250,232 669.421,070 1,001,367,109 
	1,947,101,254 5,397,301,685 

	Net book value December 31 2013 
	$ 383,938,286 90,626,241 
	I,113,581 ,2 10 259,163,194 156,249,388 708,429,600 
	1,012,223.280 
	2,286,696,766 
	2,286,696,766 

	6,010,907.965 
	6,010,907.965 

	15. TRANSFER PAYMENT REVENUE 
	Provincial grants .Transit .Social assistance .Child care .Pub! ic health .Ambulance .Services for seniors .Housing .Police .Roadways .Other .Environmental services .
	Federal grants .Transit .Gas tax .Housing .Other .Environmental services .Social assistance .Public health .Roadways .
	Total transfer payments 
	2013 
	2013 
	2013 
	2012 

	$ 
	$ 
	$ 

	168,262,893 
	168,262,893 
	175,548,100 

	67,990,062 
	67,990,062 
	62,489,827 

	61,199,528 
	61,199,528 
	46,795,183 

	46,796,572 
	46,796,572 
	45,877,270 

	30,318,598 
	30,318,598 
	27,298,365 

	22,276,713 
	22,276,713 
	21,752,867 

	19,251,575 
	19,251,575 
	13,739,329 

	8,967,738 
	8,967,738 
	9,033,102 

	3,676,031 
	3,676,031 
	303,333 

	497,004 
	497,004 
	1,734,603 

	0 
	0 
	240,000 


	429,236,714 
	429,236,714 
	429,236,714 
	404,811,979 

	25,484,597 
	25,484,597 
	2,925,345 

	21,397,730 
	21,397,730 
	5,956,041 

	13,382,749 
	13,382,749 
	9,794,407 

	3,860,258 
	3,860,258 
	793,581 

	1,965,874 
	1,965,874 
	27,224,624 

	27,729 
	27,729 
	4,003 

	15,487 
	15,487 
	18,782 

	3,851 
	3,851 
	303,333 


	66,138,275 47,020,116 .
	66,138,275 47,020,116 .

	495,374,989 45 1,832,095 .
	December 31, 2013 
	16. M ETROLINX PROJECT 
	16. M ETROLINX PROJECT 
	Under an agreement signed with Metrolinx, the Region receives funds from Metrolinx to build assets that upon completion will be transferred to Metrolinx. The following chart summarizes the amounts spent on the project. 
	Included in revenue is $160,484,452 received from Metrolinx for assets that are owned and controlled by MetroliiLx. The corresponding expense amounts are recorded inTransportation Services expense. 
	The total commitment to this project over the life of the contract is $1,755,000,000. 
	s 
	s 
	s 

	Spent prior to 2013 
	Spent prior to 2013 
	227,160,745 

	Spent in 20 13 
	Spent in 20 13 
	160,484,452 

	Total spent 
	Total spent 
	387,645, 197 


	Total commitment l '755,000,000 .Balance to be spent l ,367,354,803 .
	SINKING FUND STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION, FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 
	2013 .
	KPMG LLP 
	KPMG LLP 
	KPMG LLP 
	Telephone 
	(416) 228· 7000 

	Yonge Corporate Centre 
	Yonge Corporate Centre 
	Fax 
	(416) 228-7123 

	4100 Yonge Street Su1te 200 
	4100 Yonge Street Su1te 200 
	Internet 
	wwwkpmg ca 

	Toronto ON 
	Toronto ON 
	M2P 2H3 

	Canada 
	Canada 



	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
	To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of The Regional Municipality of York 
	We have audited the financial statements of the sinking funds of The Regional Municipality of York, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2013, the statement of financial activities and change in fund balance for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
	Management's Responsibility far the Financial Statements 
	Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
	Auditors' Responsibility 
	Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
	An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
	We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
	Opinion 
	In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the sinking funds of The Regional Municipality of York as at December 31, 2013, the results of its operations and changes tn 1ts financial position for the year then ended in accordance w1th Canadian public sector accountmg standards. 
	Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 
	April 28, 2014 Toronto, Canada 
	THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK Sinking Fund Statement of Financial Position As at December 31,2013 
	Financial Assets Investments -at amortized cost (Note 1) Interest receivable 
	Total Assets 
	Liabilities Actuarial requirement for retirement ofthe Sinking Fund (Note 2) Fund balance 
	Total Liabilities and Fund Position 
	2013 
	2013 
	2013 
	2012 

	$ 
	$ 
	$ 

	358,906,450 
	358,906,450 
	237,363,447 

	1,242,552 
	1,242,552 


	360,149,002 237,363,447 .
	359,111,338 237,206,766 1,037,664 156,681 
	360,149,002 237,363,447 .
	THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK Sinking Fund Statement of Financial Activities and Change in Fund Balance For the year ended December 31, 2013 
	Revenues 
	Contributions from: .Area Municipalities .Regional Corporation .
	Total contributions 
	Interest and capital gains Total revenues 
	Expenses 
	Actuarial requirement for the year Change in Fund Balance Opening Fund Balance 
	Closing Fund Balance 
	Budget s 
	Budget s 
	Budget s 
	2013 $ 
	2012 $ 

	7,405,437 100,887,11 9 1 08,292,556 
	7,405,437 100,887,11 9 1 08,292,556 
	7,395,877 100,887,122 108,282,999 
	6,954,386 82,810,843 89,765,229 

	14,164,057 122,456,613 
	14,164,057 122,456,613 
	14,502,553 122,785,552 
	6,641,625 96,406,854 

	( 121 ,904,572) 552,041 156,681 
	( 121 ,904,572) 552,041 156,681 
	(121,904,569) 880,983 156,681 
	(96,899,754) (492,900) 649,581 


	708,722 1,037,664 156,681 .
	The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of these Financial Statements. 
	December 31, 20 13 
	The Regional Municipality of York's sinking fund is a separate fund maintained for the purpose of providing periodic repayments ofall debts to be retired by means ofsinking funds. 
	1. INVESTMENTS 
	1. INVESTMENTS 
	All investments are purchased with the intention of holding them until maturity. They are recorded at cost, price adjusted annually for amortization of discount or premium on a present value basis as determined at the time of purchase with the amount of such amortization included in the interest earned on the Statement of Financial Activities and Change in Fund Balance. The investments have a market value of$357,895,788 (20 12 -$249,414,397). 

	2. ACTUARIAL REQUIREMENTS 
	2. ACTUARIAL REQUIREMENTS 
	The actuarial requirements of the sinking fund represent the amounts levied during the year as set out in the sinking fund debenture by-law plus interest thereon capitalized at a rate of 2% or 3% per annum compounded annually. Any excess revenue over these requirements is included in the sinking fund balance. 
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	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
	To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of The Regional Municipality of York 
	We have audited the financial statements of residents' trust funds and donation account of The Regional Municipality of York, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2013 and the statement of financial activities for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
	Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
	Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
	Auditors' Responsibility 
	Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
	An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
	We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to prov1de a basis for our audit opinion. 
	Opinion 
	In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial posit1on of the funds held m trust and its donation account by The Regional Municipality of York as at December 31, 2013, the results of its operations and changes in its financial position for the year then ended m accordance w1th Canadian public sector accounting standards. 
	Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 
	April 28, 2014 Toronto, Canada 
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	THE RE GIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK Residents' Trust Funds and Donation Account Statement of Financial Position As at December 31, 20 13 
	Trust 
	Trust 
	Trust 
	Donation 
	2013 
	2012 

	$ 
	$ 
	$ 
	$ 
	$ 

	Financial Assets 
	Financial Assets 

	Cash 
	Cash 
	152,955 
	50,557 
	203,512 
	216,468 

	Residents' petty cash 
	Residents' petty cash 
	0 
	5,500 


	Total Assets 152,955 50,557 203,512 221,968 
	Fund Balances 152,955 50,557 203,512 221,968 
	THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK Residents' Trust Funds and Donation Account Statement of Financial Activities For the year ended December 31, 2013 
	Trust Donation 2013 2012 $ $ $ $ 
	Fund balances, beginning of year 
	Fund balances, beginning of year 
	Fund balances, beginning of year 
	173,769 
	48,199 
	221,968 
	216,290 

	Source of funds: 
	Source of funds: 

	Deposits on behalf of residents 
	Deposits on behalf of residents 
	396,340 
	1,905 
	398,245 
	394,150 

	Interest earned on deposits 
	Interest earned on deposits 
	1,453 
	1,453 
	2,110 


	396,340 3,358 399,698 396,260 Use of funds: Withdrawals (417, 154) (I ,000) (418,154) (390,582) 
	Net activity (20,814) 2,358 p8,456) 5,678 
	Fund balances, end of year 152,955 50,557 203,512 221,968 
	The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial Statements 
	THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK Notes to the Residents' Trust Funds and Donation Account Statement of Financial Position and Financial Activities 
	THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK Notes to the Residents' Trust Funds and Donation Account Statement of Financial Position and Financial Activities 
	December 31, 2013 
	1. .A CCOUNTING POLICIES 
	1. .A CCOUNTING POLICIES 
	a) .These financial statements reflect the financial activity and financial position of funds held in trust by the Regional Municipality of York (the 'Region') for residents ofNewmarket Health Centre and Maple Health Centre, and funds donated to the facilities. 
	b) .Funds held in trust and monies received by way of donation are invested by the Region on behalf of the residents. Interest is credited to the funds based on the average yield earned by the Region on its investments. 

	2. .BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
	2. .BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
	a) .Cash and investments are recorded at cost. 
	b) .Deposits on behalf of residents are reported upon receipt and interest income is reported on the accrual basis ofaccounting. Withdrawals are reported in the period in which they are made. 
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